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PROCEEDINGS
Whereupon,

LAWRENCE G. HINCKER
After having first been duly sworn or affirmed to
testify to the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified under oath
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WEISBEIN:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Hincker. How are you
today?

A. Fine.

Q. Good. So we are going to be asking you

some questions today in support of the Applicant's

defense of the opposition. You understand that.

Correct?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. I would like to mark as Applicant's

Exhibit 1 the notice of taking testimony deposition.
(Applicant's Exhibit 1, Notice, marked
for identification.)
Q. I would like for you to look at
Applicant's Exhibit 1, Mr. Hincker. That's the

notice of taking testimony by Virginia Tech in
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1 connection with this matter. Have you seen that

2 before?

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And you understand you are here under

5 oath testifying subject to the penalty of perjury?

6 A. Correct.

7 0. So Mr. Hincker, could you please state
8 your full name and give your residence address for

9 the record?

10 A. Lawrence G. Hincker. I live at 215

11 Deer Croft Drive in Blacksburg, Virginia.

12 Q. By whom are you employed?

13 A. I'm currently part-time employed. I am
14 retired from Virginia Tech but I work part-time at
15 the University.

16 Q. What do you do for them currently?

17 A. My title is Senior Advisor to Beyond

18 Boundaries, a long-range planning foundation.

19 Q. And when did you retire as a full-time
20 employee of Virginia Tech?
21 A. January lst of this year.
22 Q. Prior to your retirement, what was your
23 position at Virginia Tech?
24 A. I was Associate Vice President for

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 University Relations.

2 Q. And how long had you held that

3 position?

4 A. I held the position since 1989. I held
5 the title since 1996.

6 Q. And as Associate Vice President for

7 University Relations, what were your

8 responsibilities?

9 A. I was the chief communications officer
10 and as a result, I would be responsible for media

11 relations, institutional communications,

12 publications, video productions, public -- the radio
13 station, the website, WBTF, the public radio

14 station, and then a separate department called

15 Trademark and Licensing.

16 Q. You oversaw the Trademark and Licensing
17 Department. Correct?

18 A. Correct.

19 Q. In 2010 through 2013, who managed the
20 Trademark and Licensing Department?
21 A. The director was Locke White.

22 Q. When did he leave the University,

23 approximately, if you know?
24 A. I don't remember. I want to say 2013,
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1 something like that.

2 Q. And did you work closely with Mr. White
3 in connection with trademarks and licensing?

4 A, I did. Periodically he reported to me
5 and periodically he reported to somebody else.

6 Q. And to whom did you report?

7 A. Well, I had three vice presidents I

8 reported to. I was hired by a fellow named Charlie
9 Forbes and then later Charles Steiger and then
10 Elizabeth Flanigan, Betsy Flanigan.
11 Q. Are you familiar with a trademark
12 dispute that arose between the University and a

13 company called Hokie Real Estate?
14 A. I am.
15 Q. And what is your knowledge of that
16 dispute?
17 A. We filed a trademark application for
18 the term Hokie and it was opposed by the firm Hoos.
19 Q. But before the trademark application,
20 are you familiar with the dispute involving Hokie
21 Real Estate?
22 A. Correct, I am.
23 Q. Do you know in what year that dispute
24 began?
Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 A. I want to say 2010.

2 Q. Did there come a point in time where
3 the University sent a cease and desist letter to

4 Hokie Real Estate?

5 A. We did.

6 Q. That was sent by the in-house legal

7 department of Virginia Tech, was it not?

8 A. Yes, Steve Capaldo was the author of
9 the letter.

10 Q. Was a response to that letter ever

11 received?

12 A. Yes, from Mr. Finch.

13 Q. I would like to mark as Applicant's
14 Exhibit 2 a letter on the Creekmore Law Firm

15 letterhead dated March 30, 2010 addressed to Steve
16 Capaldo at the University and written by Keith

17 Finch.

18 (Applicant's Exhibit 2, Letter 3/30/10,
19 marked for identification.)
20 Q. Is that the letter that you were

21 referring to that Mr. Finch sent?

22 A. Yes.
23 Q. I ask you to look at the third full
24 paragraph of that letter that starts with the word

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 "furthermore." Do you see that?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Could you read that sentence into the

4 record?

5 A. Beginning with?

6 Actually the entire paragraph.

7 A. Okay. "Furthermore, even a preliminary
8 investigation into the University's practice of

9 marking its licensed products reveals a number of

10 University licensed products that improperly use the
11 Federal trademark registration symbol, circle R, in
12 connection with the use of unregistered and

13 unprotectible term 'Hokie.' We have also documented
14 such misuse on the University's own website. These
15 practices, coupled with your attempting to leverage
16 concessions or licenses from the legitimate users of
17 the mark 'Hokie' through false assertion of

18 trademark rights in the term not only is a violation
19 of trademark law, but also is actionable as an
20 unfair trade practice. By this letter we place
21 University on notice of its impermissible marking
22 campaign and demand hereby is made that it correct
23 all such mis-markings immediately."
24 Q. Prior to receiving the March 30, 2010
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letter, what was the University's policy with
respect to using the R in a circle registration
symbol in connection with the Hokie trademark?

A. Well, we would use it with the word
Hokies or Hokie. The word Hokies, the plural, is
the version that is registered with the PTO. It was
our opinion that there really wasn't any difference
between the two, and so it never occurred to us that
we shouldn't, as Mr. Finch contends in the letter of
March 2013, that it was a violation to apply the
circle R to the singular version of the word Hokie.

Q. Just to correct the record, the date of

the letter is March 30, 2010.

A. What did I say?

Q. 2013.

A. Pardon.

Q. After the receipt of the March 30, 2010

letter from Mr. Finch, did the University change its
policy with respect to the use of the R in a circle

registration symbol in connection with the trademark

Hokie?
A. Yes.
And what change did it make?
A, We made a series of changes beginning

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 that summer. We -- the first thing we did was work
2 with our licensing agent, LRG, which had an online
3 system called Trademarx, it is one word and it ends
4 with an X, Trademarx, and we instructed LRG to no

5 longer have in that online system Hokie singular

6 with a circle R.

7 We also sent letters that fall -- I

8 believe, again, it's been five years now, a lot of
9 water under the bridge for me -- we sent letters to
10 our licensees instructing them to no longer use it.
11 We changed the policy manual for the
12 department. I think the big thing that we did was
13 to develop a matrix, some might call it a

14 spreadsheet, but basically a matrix showing the

15 various registered marks we had, the various marks
16 that we claim as trademark that weren't registered.
17 We showed those against the classifications so that
18 we would instruct the licensees whether to use

19 circle R or whether to use the designation TM on our
20 mark.
21 Q. Thank you. Did there come a point in
22 time that the University actually commenced a
23 trademark litigation, trademark infringement
24 litigation against Hokie Real Estate?

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 A, Yes, we did. I believe it was the fall
2 of that year that we commenced the litigation to
3 prevent Hokie Real Estate from using the term Hokie
4 in its name.
5 Q. Before you testified that the
6 University had a trademark registration for the mark
7 Hokies, and I would like to mark as exhibit,
8 Applicant's Exhibit 3, a copy of the Certificate of
9 Registration.
10 (Applicant's Exhibit 3, Certificate of
11 Registration, marked for identification.)
12 Q. Can you identify the document that I
13 put before you?
14 A. This is the registration certificate
15 from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. The
16 registration number?
17 Q. Yes.
18 A. Okay. The Registration No. 2,351,364,
19 registered on May 23, 2000.
20 Q. Thank you. Was the issue of the
21 purported misuse of the R in a circle symbol in
22 connection with the Hokie trademark an issue that
23 arose in the Hokie Real Estate litigation?
24 A. Yes, yves, it was. It was contended by
Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com

3155 W. Main St. , Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017
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the counsel for the defendant that Hokie and Hokies
were two different marks.

Q. And is the issue of the misuse or
purported misuse of the R in a circle registration
symbol in connection with the Hokie mark an issue in
this opposition proceeding?

A, It is my understanding that it is also
a contention on the part of counsel.

Q. Now, you said that, I believe in June
of 2010, that the University changed its policy in
respect of using the R in a circle registration
symbol in connection with the Hokie mark. Correct?

A. Let's make sure that we understand the
difference between policy and action. We took a
series of actions. We had a formal policy. Formal
policy was ultimately changed later, but we took
action in June to no longer basically connect the
implementation in that manner. So yes, we took
action in June.

Q. To your knowledge, is it the -- does
the University to this day still direct its
licensees to use the ™M symbol with the Hokie
trademark as opposed to the R in a circle

registration symbol?

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 A. Yes, that is the procedure and the

2 policy by the trademark office, and that's why they
3 have that spreadsheet that whenever a licensee

4 presents a product for approval by the trademark

5 office, the administrators use that spreadsheet to
6 determine whether or not it gets the circle R or TM.
7 MR. WEISBEIN: Thank you. I have no

8 further questions for this witness.

9 MR. FINCH: One moment, please. May we
10 step out for just a minute?

11 MR. WEISBEIN: Sure.

12 MR. FINCH: If we could go off the

13 record.

14 (A recess was taken from 9:16 a.m. to
15 9:20 a.m.)

16 MR. WEISBEIN: I want to move into

17 evidence the exhibits that we marked. I

18 would like to move into evidence Exhibits 1
19 through 3. Are there any objections?
20 MR. FINCH: No objections.
21 (Applicant's Exhibit 1-3 were moved
22 into evidence.)
23 ///
24 ///
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CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. FINCH:

Q. Mr. Hincker, I would like to provide
you with a document that has been marked as
Opposer's Exhibit A.

(Opposer's Exhibit A, Declaration of

Hincker, was marked for identification.)

Q. If you could take a look at that and if

you could let me know when you're done taking a look

at that.
A. Okay. So be it.
Q. Do you recognize this document?
A. I do now, vyes.
Q. What is the document?
A. It's a declaration on my part to amend

the University's declaration of first use of the
term Hokies.
Q. And what was the purpose of that
amendment?
MR. WEISBEIN: Objection. I am going
to object under Federal Rule of Evidence 611
that this question is beyond the scope of
examination of the direct questions.

MR. FINCH: I see. Well, we do have

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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the Certificate of Registration in evidence,
so it seems to me that guestions relating to
the Hokies registration are relevant, but I
suppose that's to be decided by the Board.
We will go ahead and proceed.

MR. WEISBEIN: Then I just note for the
record that all questions regarding this
topic, there will be a standing objection as
beyond the scope of direct.

MR. FINCH: All right, sir, that's
fine. Of course, this is an amendment to the
very same registration you've introduced. I
don't believe we have received a copy of that
registration. Would it be possible for me to
see Exhibit 3, Applicant's Exhibit 3?

MR. WEISBEIN: Sure, sorry.

MR. FINCH: Thank you very much. This
appears to be the amended certificate, then,
as it contains the date of first use of 1998
in International Class 16. Is that correct?

MR. WEISBEIN: This is your copy.

MR. FINCH: Oh, thank you very much.

MR. WEISBEIN: I meant to give you that

during the direct. This is the certificate

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 amended August 9, 2011.

2 MR. FINCH: Very well.

3 BY MR. FINCH:

4 Q. Mr. Hincker, what was the purpose of

5 this amendment?

6 A. The purpose of the amendment is stated
7 in No. 2, seeks to amend the first use of Class 16
8 description in the above-referenced registration

9 from November 11, 1896 (as spoken) to quote, as at
10 least as early at October 1, 1998, end quote.

11 Q. Now, this amendment was made because of
12 information that came to light in the Hokie Real

13 Estate lawsuit. Right?

14 A. You know, I honestly don't remember so
15 I'm not going to make an assumption.

16 Q. This was dated after the conclusion of
17 the Hokie Real Estate lawsuit, isn't that so?

18 MR. WEISBEIN: Objection. Assumes

19 facts not in evidence. You can answer the
20 question if you can.
21 A. The Hokie Real Estate lawsuit was
22 settled sometime in 2011, I don't know the exact
23 date.
24 Q. Do you recall the date of first use
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1 being an issue in the Hokie Real Estate lawsuit?

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. Do you recall it being one of the

4 subjects of your deposition in that lawsuit?

5 A. Correct.

6 Q. All right. Now, I'm going to show you
7 a document that's been marked as --

8 A. Where does this go, Mr. Finch? Does it
9 stay here?

10 MR. WEISBEIN: Just keep it in front of
11 you.

12 THE WITNESS: Okay.

13 (Opposer's Exhibit B, Screen Shot, was
14 marked for identification.

15 Q. I show you a document that has been

16 marked as Opposer's B for identification. If you

17 could, please, take a look at that and let me know
18 when you're done looking at that.

19 A. Okay.
20 Q. Do you recognize this document?
21 A. It's a screen shot of the University's
22 webgite in the section About Virginia Tech.

23 Q. And this is dated July 20077
24 A. That's the date that someone has placed
Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 in the upper left-hand corner.

2 Q. On the first page of Opposer's Exhibit
3 B, at the bottom of that main column of text, there
4 is a paragraph that begins "Stull later said that he
5 made up the word as an attention grabber." Do you

6 see that?

7 A. Uh-hmm.

8 Q. All right. ©Now, I'm going to provide

9 you with a document marked for identification as

10 Opposer's Exhibit C.

11 (Opposer's Exhibit C, Screen shot,

12 marked for identification.)

13 Q. And please, go ahead and take a look at
14 that and let me know when you're done looking at it.
15 A. Okay.

16 Q. Do you recognize this document?

17 A. It appears to be a screen shot from the
18 University's website, again, about Virginia Tech.

19 Q. Now, this is a screen shot from around
20 2010, isn't it?
21 A. It is not dated.
22 Q. Do you recognize it as being a later

23 version of --
24 A, I recognize it as coming from a design
Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com

3155 W. Main St. , Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017
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that looks like it is a Virginia Tech website. I
didn't take the screen shot so I don't know when it
was taken.

Q. Now, you testified earlier that you had
responsibility for the University's website. Is
that correct?

A. That's correct.

MR. WEISBEIN: Mr. Finch, I'm going to
raise another Federal rule of evidence 611
objection again. I think this is way beyond
the scope of direct examination and therefore
is improper.

MR. FINCH: Well, he did testify that
he has responsibility for the University's
website.

MR. WEISBEIN: Simply as part of his
job responsibilities, but his direct
examination had nothing to do with that.

MR. FINCH: I understand, but we will
proceed.

BY MR. FINCH:

Q. Looking at Opposer's Exhibit C, do you

see that same paragraph beginning "Stull later said

that he made up the word as an attention grabber, "

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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about midway down?

A. Yes, uh-hmm, I do.

Q. So this Exhibit C is a later version of
the same web page as Exhibit B. Right?

A. It appears to be.

Q. Now, I'm going to show you a document
that's been marked as Opposer's Exhibit D for
identification.

(Opposer's Exhibit D, Screen shot,
marked for identification.)

Q. Please take a look and let me know when
you're done looking at that.

A. Okay.

MR. WEISBEIN: And I am just going to
state for the record, rather than stating my

Rule 611 objection after each question, that

I will have the same standing objection

throughout this entire line of questions.

MR. FINCH: Thanks.
BY MR. FINCH:

Q. Looking at Opposer's Exhibit D,

Mr. Hincker, do you see that same paragraph that we
referenced in our discussion of both Opposer's

Exhibit B and Opposer's Exhibit C?
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1 A. No.

2 Q. In fact, that paragraph has been

3 deleted from Opposer's Exhibit D?

4 A. That's correct.

5 Q. And that deletion occurred after the

6 filing of the Hokie Real Estate lawsuit. Right?

7 A. I don't know when the deletion

8 occurred, but it definitely is no longer in this

9 version.

10 Q. You testified in your direct

11 examination, Mr. Hincker, that after receiving the
12 letter identified as Applicant's Exhibit 2, Virginia
13 Tech took a number of actions relating to the use of
14 the circle R mark in connection with the word Hokie.
15 Is that right?

16 A. Correct.

17 Q. Now, you are aware that after that the
18 University and its licensees continued to use the

19 circle R in connection with the word Hokie on

20 products?

21 A. If it was, 1t was not as a direct
22 action on our part, that it would have been mistaken
23 usage, that the University had directed sometime
24 subsequent to the receipt of your letter in early

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
3155 W. Main St. , Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017




Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LLC v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.

Lawrence G. Hincker on 05/12/2016 Page 23

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

2010 that people would no longer use the circle R

adjacent to the singular version of our registered

mark.
Q. But that use continued regardless?
MR. WEISBEIN: Objection.
A, Some may have used it without our
knowledge.
Q. You earlier testified that you sent

letters to licensees of the University telling them
to stop using the circle R mark in connection with
the word Hokie. Right?

A. For future product use, that's correct.
So the continued usage that you are referring would
have been for products already out in the
distribution stream.

Q. Those communications that you sent to
licensees didn't actually get sent until 2011, did
they?

A. Mr. Finch, I don't have any idea. It
was somewhere subsequent to our action over the
summer of 2010 when we were debating whether or not
to file suit, and then in consultation with LRG, who
was our licensing agent at the time. And then

sometime subsequent to that, and it may have been
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early 20', I don't have the exact date, that there
was a formal correspondence to the licensees.

Q. But you didn't recall any of those
products from where they were in the --

A. No, that was a conscious action on our
part.

Q. You didn't produce any of these
communications to licensees telling them to stop
using the circle R in connection with the term Hokie
in response to discovery questions?

A. What do you mean by "produce"?

Q. In the Hokie Real Estate case you may
recall that discovery was conducted that included
your deposition, the depositions of other persons,
and also each side giving documents to the other.
Do you remember that?

A. Yeah, I remember that there were
thousands of documents.

Q. Right. And nowhere among any of those
thousands of documents was there any communication
from Virginia Tech to anybody using Virginia Tech
trademarks telling them to stop using the circle R
in connection with the term Hokie. Right?

MR. WEISBEIN: Objection to the form of
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the question.

Q. You can go ahead and answer the
question if you like.

A. I have no specific recollection of the
assertion that you made in your question of a
document of whatever sort it is you are asking
about. So if you are asking me did I remember one
document in the tens of thousands of documents, no,
I don't remember that document.

Q. Well, I'm not referring to a specific
document. Because counsel for the Applicant
objected to the form of the question, I will go
ahead and restate it.

The documents that Virginia Tech
provided to the other side in the Hokie Real Estate
case didn't include any of these communications from
Virginia Tech to licensees telling them to stop
using the circle R in connection with the word
Hokie. Right?

A. I'm not aware of it.

MR. FINCH: I have no further questions.

MR. WEISBEIN: I have no questions.

You are excused, Mr. Hincker.

(The deposition concluded at 9:36 a.m.)
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CERTIFICATE
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF ROANOKE

I, Katherine P. Ford, Notary Public in and
for the Commonwealth of Virginia, at Large, do
hereby certify that the Deposition of LAWRENCE G.
HINCKER was by me reduced to machine shorthand in
the presence of the witness, afterwards transcribed
under my direction by means of computer, that
reading and signing was not requested, and that to
the best of my ability the foregoing is a true and
correct transcript of the Deposition as aforesaid.

I further certify that this Deposition was
taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption
specified.

I further certify that I am not a
relative, counsel or attorney for either party or
otherwise interested in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I have hereunto set my
hand at Roanoke, Virginia, on this the 19th day of

May, 2016.

Katherine P. Ford, RPR
Notary Public No. 166385

My commission expires February 28, 2019.
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

HOKIE OBJECTIVE ONOMASTICS
SOCIETY LLC,

O " “
pposer Opposition No. 91207895

v, Serial No.: 85/531,923

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE
AND STATE UNIVERSITY,

Applicant.
APPLICANT VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND

STATE UNIVERSITY’S NOTICE OF TAKING TESTIMONY OF
LAWRENCE G. HINCKER AND BOBBIE JEAN NORRIS

TO: Keith Finch, Esq.
The Creekmore Law Firm PC
318 North Main Street
Blacksburg, VA 24060
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that on Thursday, May 12, 2016, Applicant will take the
testimony depositions upon oral examination of LAWRENCE G. HINCKER, Associate Vice
President for University Relations (Retired), Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University,
beginning at 9:00 a.m., and BOBBIE JEAN NORRIS, Special Assistant to the Senior Associate
Vice President for University Relations, Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University,
immediately following the Hincker deposition.

The depositions shall take place at the following location:

Virginia Tech Electric Service

601 Energy Drive

‘cant
Blacksburg, VA 24061 hep e TexHBIT_ /.
Conference Room 105 witness b -thnkee

pate: o127 /o

KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

4844-9385-3488.1



The depositions shall be taken before a court reporter or other such person duly
authorized to administer oaths under the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The deposition
will be recorded by stenographic means. Applicant reserves the right to record the depositions
by audio means as well.

These testimony depositions are for use at trial and/or for such other purposes as are
permitted under the rules.

You are invited to attend and cross-examine.

Dated on this 20" day of April, 2016.

Respecttully submitted,

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP
g ~F

By: v :

v

Robért . Weisbein, Esq.
Norm J. Rich, Esq.

FOLEY & LARDNER LLP
90 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10016
Telephone: (212) 682-7474
Facsimile: (212) 687-2326

Attorneys for Applicant
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State
University

o

4844-9385-34881



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that a true and complete copy of APPLICANT VIRGINIA
POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND STATE UNIVERSITY'S NOTICE OF TAKING
TESTIMONY OF LAWRENCE G. HINCKER AND BOBBIE JEAN NORRIS, was served by
First Class United States Mail on this 20" day of April, 2016, to Opposer’s correspondent of
record as follows:

Keith Finch, Esq.
The Creekmore Law Firm PC

318 North Main Street
Blacksburg, VA 24060

AU A

WILLIAM S. WALKER, JR.

4844-9385-3488.1
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REEKMORE

waw e feckineerebaw om i ANy ' i ;( \(; *‘\ keid@ereckmorelaw.com

KEITH FINCH
Tet: (540) 4439350

March 30, 2010

Stephen Capaldo, Esq.

Associate University Legal Counsel
236 Burruss Hall (0121)
Blacksburg, Virginia 24061

icaol exmigm__ 2
WITNEss L Minc keg
M

DATE: __ S-12~(,
KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

Subject: Your Letters of January 25 and March 8, 2010

Dear Mr. Capaldo:

I am writing on behalf of Hokie Real Estate, Inc., in response to your letters of January 25 and
March 8, 2010, alleging that its use of the term “Hokie” constitutes trademark infringement.

Contrary to your assertions, Virginia Tech (the “University™) appears to possess no rights in the
term “tlokie.™ As you must know, the trademark registration to which you point does not cover
use of the mark “Hokie.” Aclditionally, whatever purported common law rights the University
may once have possessed or asserted in the mark “Hokie™ have long since been lost through the
University's failure to police those purported rights. Indeed, it appears that neatly a decade ago
the University sent cease-and-desist letters to alleged “infringers™ but either failed to pursue
infringement actions against those refusing to cease and desist from use of the mark, or
otherwise entered into naked licenses with other compliant parties. In either case, the result is
the same —- the University has abandoned any rights it may have had in the mark.

Furthermore, even a preliminary investigation into the University's pracrice of marking irs
licensed products veveals a number of University-licensed products that improperly use the
Federal Traderark Registration Symbol *#" in connection with the use of the unregistered, and
unprotectable, term “Hokie ™ We also have documented such misuse on the University's own
web site. These practices, coupled with your attempting to leverage concessions or licenses
from legitimate users of the mark “Iokie™ through the false assertion of trademark rights in the
term, not only is a violation of rrademark faw but also is actionable as an unfair trade practice.
By this letter. we place the University on notice of its impermissible marking campaign, and
cdlemand hereby is made thae it correcr all such mismarkings immediarely.

Inasmuch as there is no possihility whatsoever of confusion between use of the term “Hokie™ by
Hokie Real Estate and by the Univeusity, we believe this is a fight best not continued. Hokie
Real Estate provides real estate agency and brokerage services, wholly separate and distinet

106 FACULTY STREET BLACKSBURG VIRGINIA 24060
TOLL FREE (8B88) Q2504 Fax: (540) 966-2504




«

MARCH 3Q 2010
PAGE 2 OF 2

from the eclucational services provided by the University. In using the mark *Hokie,” Hokie Real
Estate has taken the extra precautionary step of clearly stating that it *is not affiliated with
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University.” Thus there can be no likelihood of
confusion about which the University need be concerned.

fn sum, Hokie Real Estate will continue to respect the trademark rights and other intellectual
property rights of the University, short of ceasing and desisting from its non-infringing use of

the mark “Hokie” in its trade name. If the University takes action against Hokie Real Estate to
enforce the rights that the University claims in the mark “Hokie,” which it has failed to register,
police and protect. then the only effect will be to demonstrate to the whole world — including,
particularly, all of Hokie Nation, that the University's claim of ownership in the mark is baseless,
revealing, in essence, that the Emperor has no clothes. | cannot conceive of a more disastrous
public relations campaign for the University than a judicial confirmation of the University’s
derelict intellectual property policy with respect to a mark it appears now to covet.

Please let me know if [ can answer any other questions you may have in this regard.
Very Truly Yours,
THE CREEKMORE LAW FIRM PC
Keith Finch

cc:  John Wilburn, Hokie Real Estate, Inc.
James R. Creekmore, Esq.

(%]
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Wnited States Patent and Trabemark Office ‘?

Reg. No. 2,351,364
Registered May 23, 2000
Amended Aug. 9, 2011
Int. Cls.: 14, 16, 18, 21
and 2§

TRADEMARK

PRINCIPAL REGISTER

HOKIES

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND STATE UNIVERSITY (VIRGINIA STATE
AGENCY)

210 BURRUSS HALL

BLACKSBURG, VA 24061

FOR: PRECIOUS METALS, JEWELRY, NAMELY, GOLD PINS, GOLD EARRINGS, TIE
TACKS: CHARMS AND RINGS, WATCHES AND CLOCKS, IN CLASS 14 (U.S. CLS. 2, 27,
28 AND 30)

FIRST USE 7-0-1982; IN COMMERCE 7-0-1982.

FOR: PAPER ARTICLES, NAMELY, WRITING PAPER, FOLDERS, NOTE PADS, STATION-
ERY, LOOSELEAF BINDERS, DECALS, BUMPER STICKERS, NOTEBOOKS, CALENDARS,
POST CARDS. POSTERS AND PENS, IN CLASS 16 (US. CLS. 2,5, 22, 23,29, 37, 383 AND
S0y

FIRST USE 10-1-1998; IN COMMERCE 11-11-1998.

FOR: LEATHER AND IMITATION LEATHER GOODS, NAMELY, BRIEF CASE TYPE
PORTFOLIO COVERS AND BRIEF CASES; TRAVEL BAGS, BACKPACKS, WALLETS AND
UMBRELLAS, IN CLASS 18 (U.8. CLS. 1,2,3,32AND 41).

FIRST USE 7-0-1982; IN COMMIRCE 7-0-1982.

FOR: DRINKING GLASSES, MUGS, PLASTIC CUPS, INSULATING SLEEVE HOLDERS

FOR BEVERAGE CANS AND WASTE PAPER BASKETS, IN CLASS 21 (LLS. CLS. 2, 13,23,
29, 30, 32, 40 AND 303,

FIRST USE 6-17-1971; IN COMMERCE 6-17-1971.

FOR: CLOTHING, NAMELY, T-SHIRTS, SPORT SHIRTS, SWEAT PANTS, SHORTS, SWEAT
SHIRTS, SWFATERS, JERSEYS, PANTS, TTES, BABY BIBS, CAPS, HATS, SHOES, JACKETS
AND BATH ROBES, IN CLASS 25 (1.8, CLS. 22 AND 39).

FIRST USE 8-7-1975; IN COMMERCE §8-7- 1973,

SER.NO. 75-564.291, TILED 10-2-1998,

dgecant EXHIBIT < 2

wirness L. Rinckee.

DATE:  S—12-1b
KATHERINE P FORD, BFR i




REQUIREMENTS TO MAINTAIN YOUR FEDERAL
TRADEMARK REGISTRATION

WARNING: YOUR REGISTRATION WILL BE CANCELLED IF YOU DO NOT FILE THE
DOCUMENTS BEL.OW DURING THE SPECIFIED TIME PERIODS.

Requirements in the First Ten Years*
What and When to File:

First Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) between the
Sth and 6th vears aller (he registration date.  See 15 U.S.C. §§1058, 1141k, If the declaration is
accepted, the registration will continue in force for the remainder of the ten-year period, calculated
from the registration date, unless cancelled by an order of the Commissioner for Trademarks or a
federal court.

Second Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Usc (or Excusable Nonuse) and an
Application for Renewal between the 9th and 10th vears after the registration date.*
See 15 US.C. §1059.

Requirements in Successive Ten-Year Periods*

What and When to File:
You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) and an Application for Renewal between
every 9th and 10th-year period, calculated from the registration date.*

Grace Period Filings*

The above documents will be accepted as timely if filed within six months after the deadlines listed above
with the payment of an additional fee.

The United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO) will NOT send you any future notice or
reminder of these filing requirements.

*ATTENTION MADRID PROTOCOL REGISTRANTS: The holder of an intcmational registration with
an extension of protection to the United States under the Madrid Protocol must timely file the Declarations
ol Use (or Excusable Nonuse) referenced above dircctly with the USPTO. The time periods for filing are
based on the U.S. registration date (not the international registration date). The deadlines and grace periods
for the Declarations of Use (or Excusablc Nonuse) are identical to those for nationally issued registrations.
See 15U.8.C. §§1058, 1141k, However, owners of international registrations do not file renewal applications
atl the USPTO. Instead, the holder must file a renewal of the underlying international registration at the
International Bureau of the World Intellectual Property Organization, under Atticle 7 of the Madrid Protocol,
before the expiration of cach ten-year term of protection, calculated from the date of the international
registration, See 15U.8.C. §1141j. Formore information and renewal torms for the international registration,
see http /www.wipo.int/madrid/ens.

NOTE: Fees and requirements for maintaining registrations are subject to change. Please check the
USPTO website for further information, With the exeeption of renewal applications for registered
extensions of protection, you can file the registration maintenance documents referenced aboeve online
at http//www.uspio.gov.

Page: 2 /RN # 2,351,364
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

TRADEMARK : HOKIES

REG. NO. : 2,351,364

Reg. Date: : May 23, 2000

REGISTRANT : Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University
Classes : 14,16, 18,21, and 25

DECLARATION OF LAWRENCE G. HINCKER

1. My name is Lawrence G. Hincker. I am the Associate Vice President for
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University (“Virginia Tech™) and am authorized
to execute this declaration.

2. Virginia Tech seeks to amend the date of first use for the Class 16
description in the above-referenced registration from November 11, 1896 to “at least as
early as October 1, 1998.”

3. Virginia Tech initially listed November 11, 1896 as the date of first use in
commerce for goods in Class 16 because this was the date that the HOKIES term was
coined to refer to Virginia Tech and its goods or services. Amendment of the Certificate
of Registration for the referenced mark is now requested to amend the date of first use.

4. Virginia Tech was operating in good faith and in consultation with counsel
when it supplied the prior date of first use, and to the extent there was any error in the
prior date of first use, it was unintentional and inadvertent. Virginia Tech seeks
correction of the date of first use at this time to avoid any possible suggestion of error in

the prior date of first use.

" OPPOSER’'S
 EXHIBIT

A .




The undersigned, being hereby wamed that willful false statements and the like so
made are punishable by fine or imprisonment, or both, under 18 U.5.C. § 1001, and that
any such willful or false statements may jeopardize the validity of the referenced
registration, declares that the facts in this Declaration are all true; all statements made of
his own knowledge are true; and all statements made on information and belief are

believed to be true.

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND
STATE UNIVERSITY

By: W
wrence G. Hincker

Associate Vice President

Date: /7&0‘“4—'20//
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Studant Lie ¢

What Is a Hokie?

Academic Pogiams

. :
» Research A Look at Virginia Tech Traditions
»

Libranes © Here is the answer to that oft-posed question, "What's a Hakie?" and an explanation of other
' ) ‘ g8 Toch traditions.

What is a Hokie? The origin of the word "Hokie™ has nothing to do with a turkey. It was
coined by O. M. Stull {class of 1898), who used it in a spirit ysll he wrote for a competition.

Here's how that competition came ta be held. Virginia Tech was founded in 1872 as a land-
grant institution and was namad Virginia Agricultural and Mechanical College. in 18386, the
Virginia General Assembly officially changed the coflege’s name to Virginia Agricultural and
Mechanical College and Polytechnic Institute, a name so Jong thal citizens shodensd it in
popular usage to VPL. The original collegs cheer, which made reference to the original name
of the institution, was no longer suilable. Thus, a contest was held 1o select a new spirit
yell, and Stull wan the $5 top prize for his cheer, now known as Old Hokis:

N i - Haki, Haki, Hoki, Hy.

utiearhExtens - Techs, Tachs, V.P.L

Intarnationst | Sala-Rex, Sola-Rah,

it About Blasks b i Polytechs ™ Virgin-ia.
Rae, Ri, V.P.L

Where ¥e Are

Later, the phrase "Team! Team! Team!” was added at the end, and an "e" was added to
"Hoki."

Algmni & Friends - Stull later said that he made up tha word as an attention-grabber. Though he may not have
» Parents & Family known it, "Hokig" (in its varisus forms) has been around at Isast since 1842, According to
» Busingss & Industyy  Johann Norstedt, now a retired Yirginia Tech English professor, [Hokie was] a ward that
people used to express feeling, approval, excitemant, surprise. Hokie, then, is a word fike
‘hooray,’ of 'yeah,' or rah.” Whatever its original meaning, the word in the popular cheer did,
as Stull wanted, grab attention and has been a pan of Virginia Tech tradition evar since.

OPPOSER'S
EXHIBIT

B

VT 024703
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Orange and Maroon Colors

Since the university had a new name and a new yell, new college colors seemed to be a
desirable next stap. During 1896, a committes was formed 1o find a suitable combination of
colors to repiace the onginal colors of biack and gray, which appeared in strises on hats,
books, athletic uniforms, and other paraphernalia and presented an image resembiing prison
uniforms.

The committee selected burnt orange and Chicago maroon afler discovering that no other
college utilized this particular combination of colars. Bunt arange and Chicago maroon were
officially adopted and were first wom dusing a football game versus nearby Roanoke College

on Oci. 26, 1898,

Motto, Seal, and Logos

Also in 1896, the univarsity adopted Ut Prosim,
Latin for “That | May Serve,” as its motlo, and a
college seal was devalopad, Hawever, the
Virginia Tech Board of Visitors did not officially
adopt the seal, which is still used, until 1963

In 1981, Virginia Tech adopted a university
logo, which incorporates an image of the War
Mermonal with its eight pylons, each
representing a different vitue. The inclusion of
the numerals "1872," {he founding year of the
university, reinforces the traditions of more than a century of service to the fommonwealth of
Virginia, the nation, and the warld.

The university fogo was updated in 2008. The 2006 update followed a yearlong study by a
branding consultant, who worked closely with the university community te dsvelop @
representative tagline for Virginia Tech. That tagline--Invent the Future--expresses ths future-
altening and iulure-enhancing work ot each lacet o} the Yigina fech expenence. So usually
when you sea the updated logo, youll see the versian that incorporates the tagline.

The university also have an athletic logo: a streamlined VT, which is used only for sports and
sports merchandise. Unveiled in 1984, the athletic logo is a composite of designs submitted
by two Virginia Tech ant students--Lisa Eichler of Chesapeake, Va,, and Chris Craft of
Roanoke, Va.~to a competition sponscrad by the university's art department. It replaced an
oider athietic lago thal consisted of a lave V with a T centered inside it, which had debuted
in 1857,

From Gohblar bo HokieRird

VT 024704
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From Gobbler to HokieBurd

The origin of the term “Gobblers” is disputed, with ane
story claiming it was coined in the early 1900s as a
description of how student athletes would "gobble” up their
more than ample serings of food. Another story attributes
il to the fact that the 1909 foothall coach, Branch Bocock,
wanted 10 stimulate better spirit amongst hig players and
initiated them into an impromptu and informal "Gobbler
Club."

Thus, the name was wlrgady pupuler when Fred Meude, o
lscal resident chosen by the student body to serve as the
school's mascot, had a large turkey pult him in acant at a
football game in 1813, The school's president halted the
cart puiling after one game bacause he thought it was
cruel to the turkey. Meade continued to parade his
mascet, which he had trained to gobble on cammand, up
and down the sidelines—and did so until another "turkey
trainer” toak over in 1924 to continue the tradition.
Enthusiaslic fans and sports writers adopted the "Gobbler®
nickname and bagan to use it regulardy. In 1836, a
costumed Gabbler joined the live gobbler for at feast one
game. The use of a live gobbler mascot continued into the
1850s, and the first permanent costurned Gobbler toak the field in the fall of 1962,

George Wills (rght), father
of the current HokieBird
that we know and fove.

But the "Gobbler" was not to fast, at least in name. In the late 1970s, the university hired a
factball coach who heard the theory that the Gobbler mascot was based on athletes
gobbling their food down. The coach didnt like the image, so he began promoting the
“Hokie" nickname and even removed the gobble from the scoreboard--current football coach
Frank Beamer had it reinstalled. In 1982, the appearance of the Gobbler mascat costume
was changed to one thal looked ke a maroon cardinal with a snoad, and references first
appearsd ta it as "the Hokie mascol,” "the Hakie,” and "the Mokle bird.” The costume worn
by today's HokieBird made its first appearance in 1587. HokieBird has won nalional mascot
competitions and has been so popular that the mascot landed an appearance on Animal
Planet's "Turkey Secrets,” shown annually around Thanksgiving.

Fight Song
Tech Triumph, the university's most popular fight song, was composed in 1319 by Wilfred P.

Maddux (class cf 1920} and his neighbior, Mattie Eppes. it was officially adopted by the
student body in December 1919

Hokie Stone

Tach exhibits its character and pride avery day via its buildings, most of which are made of
Haokie Stone. Hokie Stone is aclually several types of fimestone cammon in Southwest
Virginia and parts of Tennessee and Alabama. Ne two stones are the same color, varying
frorn graye, browns, and blacke to pinks, orangss, and maroons Since the mid-1950z, Tech
has operated its own quarry, and a resolution passed by the hoard of visitors during the
1530s decrees that the popular imestone must now appear on every building.

Corps of Cadets

VT 024705



The Virginia Tech Corps of Cadels is another
tradition that distinguishes the university, which
required corps participation lor every able-hodiad
male for four years until 1923 and then for two
years untit 1964, when it became voluntary.
Virginia Tech remains one of three public
universilies in the country (Texas A&M and Narth
Georgia College and State University are the
others) with both an active corps of cadets and
“civilian” lifestyle on its campus.

Skipper

Various cannons have been used off and on for
years at Virginia Tech, but in the 1980s one
induotrious studont formally propoced ta the
student govarning body thal a cannon be acquirad
to fire af foctbali games. The proposal was
approved bul went no further.

About the same time, twe cadets from the class
of 1954 made a paci at a traditional Thanksgiving
Day game with then-rival VM that they would
build a cannon far Virginia Tech (then knawn as
VP to outshine--or ouiblast-VMI's "Little John," The cadets, Alton B. "Butch” Harper Jr.
and Homer Hadley "Scnny" Hickam (ol Octaber Sky fams), were tired of hearing Vi
keydets chant "Where's your cannen?” after inng thew own.

B

Harper and Hickam collected brass from their fellow cadets, added i to metal donated by
Hickam's father, collected donations from the carps to purchase other supplies, and used a
maold created in one of the engineering departments fram Civil War-style plans to make their
cannon. They derived the name of the cannon--"Skipper®-from the fact that President John
Kennedy, who had just been assassinated, had been the skipper of a PT-hoat, and they
wanted to do something to honor him.

On its first firing at the next game with VM, the eager cadets tripled the charge, which blew
the hats off half the VM! keydets and shook the glass in the press-box windows of
Hoanoke's Victory Stadium. {hey never heard the VMI chant agam.

Today, Skipper is fired from outside Lane Stadium when the football team enters the field
and when it scores.

Ciara 8. Cox, B4
goquare@vi.edy

» For more information, read Hokie, Hokie, HOKIE, HY! and a Few Other irginia Tech
Sy¥mbols and Traditions (PDF).

VT 024706
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What is a Hokie?

A Look at Virginia Tech Traditions
Here is the answer to that of-posed question, "What's a Hokie?™ and an explanation of other Tech fraditions.

Whatis a Hokie? The ofigin of the word "Hokie™ has nothing to do with a turkey. H'was coined by O. M. Stulf {class of 1896}, wha used
itin a spirityelt he wrote for a competition,

Here's how that competiion came to be held. Virginia Tech was founded in 1872 as a land-grantinstitution and was named Virginia
Agricultural and Mechanical College. In 1836 the Virginia General Assembiy officially changed the coilege’s name to Virginia
Agricultural and Mechanical Cotlege and Polytechnic Institute, a name so long that citizens shortened itin popular usage to VPL The
original college cheer, which made reference 1o the original name of the institution. was no jonger suitable. Thus, a contest was held
lo select 3 new spirit yeil, and Stull won the $5 top prize for his cheer, now known as Old Hokie:

MHoki, Hoki, Haki, Hy.
Techs, Techs, V.P.L
Sola-Rex, Soia-Rah.
Polylechs - Vir-gin-ia.
Rae, Ri, VP.L

Later, the phrase "Team! Team! Team!™” was added atthe end, and an "g" was added to "Hokl"

Stull later said that he made up the word as an ahention-grabber. Though he may not have known it, "Hokie™ {in its-various forms} has
been around atieas! since 1842. According to Juhann Narstedt, now a refired Virginia Tech English professor, “[Hokie was} a word
that people used 10 express fegling, approvai, excitement, surprise. Hokle, then, Is.a ward like hooray, or yeah, ar rah.” Whatevec its
original meaning, the word in the popular cheer did, as Stul wanted, grab attention and has been a partof Virginia Tech tradition ever
singe.

Since the universily had a new name
and a new yeli, new college colors
sesmed to be a desirable nextstep.
During 1896, a commitiee was formed
to find a suitable combination of colors
to repiace the original colors of black
and gray. which appeared in stripes on
athletic uniforms and presented an
image resembling prisan uniforms.

The committee selected bumt orange
and Chicago marocn afler discovering that ng other coliege ulilized this parlicular combination of colors. Burntarange and Chicago
maroon were officially adopted and were first worn during 2 football game versus nearby Roanoke Gollege on Oct 28, 1886,

Motto, Seal. and Logos
Also in 1888 the university adopted Ut
Prosim. Latin for "That | May Serve.” as
its motto, and a coliege seal was
deveioped. However, the Virginia Tech
Board of Vistors did not officially adopt
the seai which is stil used. uniif 1863,
in 1981, Virginia Tech adopted a
university 1ogo, which incorporales an
image of the War Memarial with ils
eight pylons, each representing 3
different virtue. The inclusion of the
numerais "1872." the founding year of
the university, reinforces the traditions
of more than a centuey of service to the
Cormmonwealth of Virginia, the nation
ang the world

OPPOSER’S
EXHIBIT

The university logo was updaled in
2006 The 2008 update ollowed g
yeartang study by a branding c
cansuitant, wha worked closely with =

the university community to develop a
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EXHIBIT D



Whalt is a Hokie?

A Look at Virginia Tech Traditions

Here ig the answer to that oft-posed guestion, "Whats a Hokie?" and an explanation of other Tech traditions.

Whatis a Hokie? The origin of the word "Hokie™ has nothing 1o do with a wrkey. {was coined by O, M. Stull (class of 1898}, whe used
itin a spirit yell he wrote for 3 competition

Harg's how that compeliion came 10 be held. Virginia Tech was founded in 1872 as a land-grant instihution and was named Virginia
Agricuitural and Mechanical Cotlege. In 1896 the Virginia General Assembiy officially changed the college’s name to Virginia
Agriculturai and Mechanical College and Polytechnic Institute, a name so long that citizens shortenied it in popular usage to VPL The
original college cheer, which made reference io the criginal name of the institution, was no longer suitable. Thus, a contest was held
10 select a new spirit yell, and Stull won the $5 top prize for his theer, now known as Old Hokia:

Haoki, Hoki, Hoki, Hy.
Techs, Techs, V.P L
Sola-Rex, Sola-Rah.
Polytechs - Vir-gin-ia.
Rae RLV.PL

Later, the phrase "Team! Team! Team!{” was added atthe end. and an “e” was added o "Hoki.”

Since the university had a new name
and a new yefl, naw college coiors
seemed to be a desirable next step
During 1896, a commiltee was formed
1o find a suitabie combinaton of celors
10 replace the original colors of black
and gray, which appeared in stripes on
athietic uniforms and presented an
image resembling prison uniforms.

The committee selected burnt orange
and Chicago maroon after discovening thatno other coflege utilized this panicular combination of colors. Burntarange and Chicago
maroon were officially adopted and were first worn during a football game versus nearby Roanoke College on Qct 26, 1896,

Motto, Seal, and Logos
Adso in 1898, the university adopted Ut
Prosim, Latin for "That{ May Serve.” as
its motto. and a college seal was
developed: Mowever. the Virginia Tech
Board of Visitors did not officially adopt
the seal, which is stidl used, untif 1963
In 1891 Virginia Tech adapted a
university loge. which iIncormaorates an
image of the War Memarial with its
eght pylons, each representing a
different virtue The inclusion of the
numerals "1872." the founding year of
the uriversity, reinforces the traditions
of more than a century of senvice to the
Commonwealth pf Virginia, the nation.
and the worid

The university logo was updated in
2008 The 2008 update followed a
yeariong study by a branding
corsatiant, who warkesd closely with
the university community o develop a
representative taghine for Virginia Tech That tagline—Invent the Future—expresses the future-altefing and QPPQSER’S
each facet of the Virginia Tech gxpedence. S0 usually when you sea the updated 1oge, you'll see the vers

faghne " EXH!Bﬂ.

The universily also has an athistic logo & streamiined VT, which is used only for sports and sports merch D
the athlelic i0go s a composite of designs submitted by two Virginia Tech at students--Lisa Eichier of Gy -
Cralt of Rpanoke, Va -lo a compatition sponsored by he universily’s ant department, i replaced an older
of 3 farge V with a T centered inside it which had debuted in 1857,
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PROCEEDINGS

Whereupon,

BOBBI J. NORRIS
After having first been duly sworn or affirmed to
testify to the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, was examined and testified under oath
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. WEISBEIN:

Q. Good morning, Ms. Norris. How are you?
A. Good, thanks.
Q. Could you state your full name and give

your residence address for the record?
A. Bobbie Jean Norris, 445 Mill Point

Road, Blacksburg, Virginia.

Q. And by whom are you employed?
A. Virginia Tech.

Q. What 1s your position?

A. Special Assistant to the Senior

Associate Vice President for University Relations.

Q. How long have you held that position?
A. Almost eight years.
Q. And when did you first start working at

Virginia Tech?

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LL.C v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.

Bobbi Jean Norris on 05/12/2016 Page 6

1 A. June 2, 2008.

2 Q. And prior to your employment at

3 Virginia Tech, what did you do?

4 A. I was a Federal financial institution
5 regulator for approximately 31 years before I

6 retired.

7 Q. And could you briefly describe your job
8 responsibilities as Special Assistant to the Senior
9 Assoclate Vice President for University Relations?
10 A, I have oversight for the operational
11 aspects of the division, including budget, finance,
12 human resources. I respond to Freedom of

13 Information Act requests from the public and I have
14 oversight responsibilities for some of the business
15 aspects of the Licénsing and Trademark Group, I've
16 worked with Locke White and his successors and

17 Sharon Dunning in that respect.

18 Q. And who did you report to?

19 A. Currently Tracy Vosburgh.

20 Q. Prior to Ms. Vosburgh, whom did you

21 report to?
22 A. Larry Hincker.
23 Q. Is it fair to say that you have direct
24 and personal knowledge of the Virginia Tech

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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licensing operations?

A. Yes, it 1is.

Q. Do you have personal knowledge of the
steps taken by Virginia Tech to discontinue the use
of the trademark registration symbol in connection
with the trademark Hokie?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Are you familiar with the trademark
infringement dispute between Virginia Tech and Hokie
Real Estate?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. And did you play any role in connection
with the Hokie Real Estate litigation?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. What role did you play in connection
with that case?

A. I oversaw the compilation of the
documents that were provided in response to document
requests and interrogatories, and I was involved in
discussions on actions we would take.

Q. In response to Mr. Finch's letter of
March 30, 2010, which is Applicant's Exhibit 2, do
you know what the first step the University took was

to discontinue the use of the R in a circle

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LL.C v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.
Bobbi Jean Norris on 05/12/2016 Page 8

1 registration symbol in connection with the Hokie

2 mark?

3 A. Yes, I do. 1In June of 2010 we

4 instructed LRG, our licensing agent at the time, to
5 revise the artwork that was used in their Trademarx
6 system to include the word Hokie with the TM on it.
7 While we didn't agree with the position stated by

8 The Creekmore Law Firm, we just believed that we

9 should just make it a moot point by going ahead and
10 taking the action.

11 Q. I would like to show you what we will
12 mark as Applicant's Exhibit 4, an email string

13 between Sharon Dudding and Kevin Phillips dated June
14 9, 2010.

15 (Applicant's Exhibit 4, Email, marked
16 for identification.)

17 Q. Can you identify this document for me?
18 A. Yes. This is an email string between
19 Sharon Dudding and our licensing and trademarks
20 office and representatives of LRG instructing them
21 on June 9, 2010, to add Hokie with the TM to the
22 artwork, to the verbiage section of the artwork
23 page.

24 Q. And was that, in fact, done, to your

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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1 knowledge?
2 A. Yes, it was.
3 Q. Now, I would like to mark as exhibit,
4 Applicant's Exhibit 5A and 5B, two charts or, yeah,
5 I guess charts of Virginia Tech trademarks and then
6 I will ask you some questions about them. Let's
7 make this 5A and 5B.
8 (Applicant's Exhibit 5A, Trademark
9 chart, marked for identification.)
10 (Applicant's Exhibit 5B, Trademark
11 chart, marked for identification.)
12 Q. Ms. Norris, could you tell me what
13 Exhibits 5A and 5B represent?
14 A. These are the artwork sheets used by
15 our agent LRG that are attached to all of our
16 contracts with our licensees and is available in
17 their online system.
18 5A is the one that was in effect up
19 until June of 2010. ©5B is the one that was placed
20 in effect in 2010. The difference between the two
21 is on page 13 of both documents and that we
22 instructed them to add Hokie with the TM to it.
23 Prior to that, it only had Hokies with an R.
24 We and all of our vendors viewed Hokie

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
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with an R as simply the singular of Hokies and was
using it with an R up until then.

Q. So looking at Applicant's Exhibit 4, it
is my understanding that those are the instructions
that Ms. Dudding gave to the LRG representative,
Mr. Phillips, to change the artwork page. Correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Then Exhibit 5B is the artwork page
that was revised as a result of the instructions in
Applicant's Exhibit 4. 1Is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Other than changing the artwork page to
reflect the Hokie trademark with the TM designation
beside it, did the University take any other steps
to implement its decision to no longer use the R in
the circle in connection with the Hokie trademark?

A, Yes, we did.

Q. Could you tell me what the next step
that you recall was?

A. There were a series of steps in March
of 2011 that we took. One of them was to instruct
LRG, again our licensing agent, to send an email to
our 600-plus vendors, licensees, instructing them

that they could no longer use the circle R with
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Hokie and that Hokie singular would always be
accompanied by a TM.

Q. Okay. Let's mark as Applicant's
Exhibit 6 an email dated March 15, 2011 from Jack
Landrigan.

(Applicant's Exhibit 6, Email, marked
for identification.)

Q. Can you tell me what Applicant's
Exhibit 6 is?

A. This is an email from Jack Landrigan at
LRG to all of Virginia Tech's licensees, it would
have been about 600 or so at the time, forwarding a
message from Locke White to them advising them of
our position on using Hokie with the -- always with
the TM.

Q. Just so the record is clear, who was
Locke White?

A. Locke White was the director of
licensing at the time.

Q. Can you read into the record the entire
text of what, of the email message that was sent to
all of your 600-plus licensees?

A, It starts with "Virginia Tech has

requested that LRG forward the following update to
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their graphic identity program on their behalf.
Please do not reply to this email notice directly.
If you have questions or require further information
please direct all inquiries to Sharon Dudding via
email at duddingsevt.vdu."

And then the message is "Dear licensee,
We need to address a couple of questions that have
recently been brought to our attention regarding
Virginia Tech trademarks and the use of," it is a
blank here but it's a circle R, "and TM. The name
Hokies in the plural form will continue to be
designated with a circle R in connection with the
sale of the vast majority of licensed merchandise.
The singular form Hokie should now always be
designated with TM. This change was made several
months ago on our artwork on LRG Trademarx online,
but we wanted to bring it to your attention again.
Many of the Virginia Tech trademarks are designated
as registered with the circle R for a substantial
number of different goods as listed on the
registrations. However, there are a small number of
licensed goods that may not be listed in the
registrations. The correct marking on these goods

will therefore be TM depending on the nature of the
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goods. "

Then in bold, "The Virginia Tech
Licensing Department will make the determination of
whether the circle R or TM is needed when the
product sample and/or artwork are submitted and you
will be informed of any required changes. Please
remember that you are required to submit all artwork
for every production run, even if the artwork has
been approved in the past. This will eliminate any
possible inadvertently improper marking that might
arise in the future. We look forward to working
closely with each of you to make the upcoming school
year a record-breaking year. Thanks, Locke White,
Director of Licensing."

Q. Did the University take any other steps
to implement this new policy of only using the TM in
connection with the Hokie trademark other than what
we've already talked about?

A. Yes, we did. Sharon Dudding, the
licensing technician, put together a spreadsheet
that listed all of our registered marks and all of
the classes and goods in which they were registered
which she could use as a reference on a daily basis

whenever artwork came in to make sure she was
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instructing licensees regarding the proper mark.

In addition, we revised our artwork
sheet again to include a prominent note advising our
licensees about the need for TM versus the R.

Q. I would like to mark as Applicant's
Exhibit 7 the Dudding, what we will call the Dudding
spreadsheet or chart.

(Applicant's Exhibit 7, Spreadsheet,

was marked for identification.)

Q. Ms. Norris, can you explain to me what
Applicant's Exhibit 7 is?

A. This is an Excel spreadsheet that
Sharon Dudding put together that lists all of our
registered marks across the top and the classes and
the goods for each of those going on the left-hand
column. This way she has a reference point whenever
artwork comes in that she can look and see if an
item is listed on here, it receives an R, the circle
R. 1If it's not, it receives a TM.

Q. And do you know approximately when this
spreadsheet, Applicant's Exhibit 7, was created?

A. It was done March of 2011, in that same
general time frame as the email that was sent out to

our licensees.
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1 Q. And you also testified that you, at

2 around that time or in addition to the steps that

3 you just said, that you also again revised the

4 artwork page. Is that correct?

5 A. Yes, it is.

6 Q. So I would like to mark as Applicant's
7 Exhibit 8 a copy of the Virginia Polytechnic

8 Institute and State University Non-Exclusive

9 Trademark Licensing Agreement.

10 (Applicant's Exhibit 8, Agreement,

11 marked for identification.)

12 Q. Could you please explain to me what

13 Exhibit 8 is?

14 A. This is the standard licensing

15 agreement that LRG used with our licensees. And

16 attached to it, beginning at page 11, is the artwork
17 sheet which, again, goes with all of the licensees'
18 licenses and is placed on the website for reference
19 for all of the licensees.

20 Q. And do you recall what it was in

21 Attachment A that was revised in respect to the new
22 policy to only use TM with respect to the mark
23 Hokie?
24 A. We added the -- a note at the top of
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the page to bring attention to the fact that some
articles use circle R and some use TM.

Q. Could you read into the record the
sentence beginning "However"?

A. "However, there are some licensed goods
that may not be listed in the registrations. The
correct marking on these goods might therefore be TM
depending on the nature of the merchandise. The
Virginia Tech Licensing Department will make that
determination when the product sample and/or artwork
are submitted. Some of the Virginia Tech trademarks
are not registered and should be marked with TM as

noted below."

Q. And could you turn to page 14.
A. Okay.
Q. And does the trademark Hokie appear

anywhere on that page?

A. Yes, it does. It appears in the
verbiage section about two-thirds of the way down
with a TM.

Q. Thank you. When, approximately, would
this license agreement have been, or not the license
agreement per se but Exhibit A, Schedule A have been

revised, Attachment A?
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1 A. In March of 2011, around the same time
2 as the other two.

3 Q. Now, before you mentioned Ms. Dudding.
4 Who was Ms. Dudding, what is her position with the

5 University, and what are her responsibilities?

6 A, Her title at the time was Licensing

7 Technician, and her primary responsibility or what

8 she spends the vast majority of her time on is

9 reviewing the artwork as it comes in from licensees.
10 Most of it comes in through an online system and she
11 goes online and reviews them and either approves,

12 disapproves, or requires changes.

13 Some of it comes via email because

14 vendors have worked with her over the years and they
15 will send it to her before they actually load it

16 into the online system. But by far the vast

17 majority of her time that we get probably between

18 8,000 and 10,000 pieces of artwork a year that she
19 reviews.

20 Q. Do you work with her in connection with
21 these reviews?
22 A. Intermittently, yes. She has a direct
23 supervisor, but at times there has been a vacancy in
24 the position and on a routine basis if there are
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questions she will come to me.

Q. Now, in exhibit, Applicant's Exhibit 6,
which you read into the record, was the email giving
notification of the new TM policy. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. At the top it said "If you have any
questions or require further information please
direct all inquiries to Sharon Dudding via email at
duddingsevt.vdu.

Do you remember reading that into the
record?

A. Yes, I do.

0. Did Ms. Dudding, in fact, receive
inquiries as a result of this email, Applicant's
Exhibit 67?

A. Yes, she did.

0. I would like to mark as Applicant's
Exhibit 9A an email exchange between Sharon Dudding
and Lorraine Watts dated March 16, 2011.

(Applicant's Exhibit 9A, Email, marked
for identification.)

Q. Can you tell me what Exhibit 9A is?

A, This is an email exchange between one

of our licensees, Dolly Hosiery Mill, Inc. and
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Sharon Dudding dated March 16, 2011, the day after
LRG sent out the email advising people, advising our
licensees about the R versus the TM.

Ms. Watts i1s writing "Regarding the
Virginia Tech trademark, we only use the standing
Hokie on our licensed products with the R. Please
let me know if this is not correct."

And Ms. Dudding responds back "There
are certain classifications on categories of
products we are registered for and circle R should
be used with those goods. With products that do not
fall into those categories, a TM should be used.
Hokie singular always will get a TM. Hokies plural,
depending on the product, will get a circle R or a
TM. When you submit our artwork and/or samples you
will be told which one you should use. Please just
follow our instructions when you submit on
Trademarx. Hope this helps."

Q. I would like to show you what we will
mark as Applicant's 9B, an email exchange dated
April 21, 2011 between Ms. Dudding and Karla
Kohlmann.

(Applicant's Exhibit 9B, Email, marked

for identification.)
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1 Q. Ms. Norris, can you describe what

2 Exhibit 9B 1is?

3 A. This i1s an email exchange between a

4 vendor, Karla Kohlmann, of 4imprint, and Sharon

5 Dudding regarding changes needed to the artwork that
6 they had submitted.

7 Q. And what advice did Ms. Dudding provide
8 to Ms. Kohlmann?

9 A. She asked her to "Please correct

10 artwork. Hokies needs to have a TM, the Hokie Bird
11 needs to have a TM, and Virginia Tech needs to have
12 a TM. There are certain categories of products that
13 we are registered for and circle R should be used

14 with these goods. If products do not fall into

15 these categories a TM should be used. When you

16 submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be told if
17 a change is needed. Please follow our instructions
18 when you submit on Trademarx."

19 And she re-forwards the email that LRG
20 sent out on March 15, 2011.

21 Q. Thank you. I would like to show you

22 what we will mark as Applicant's 9C, which is an

23 email string between Ms. Dudding and DecWallCreArt,
24 dated May 3, 2011.

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
3155 W. Main St., Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017



Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LLC v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.
Bobbi Jean Norris on 05/12/2016 Page 21

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

(Applicant's Exhibit 9C, Email, marked

for identification.)

Q. Ms. Norris, can you please tell me what
Applicant's Exhibit 9C is?

A. It's an email exchange between Sharon
Dudding and Decorative Walls and Creative Arts
regarding the use of our marks, in particular the
licensee, Decorative Walls, asks "Sharon, I'm
ordering the mascot Hokie. Will all future marks be
TM or is this just for the sample for the licensing
review?"

Sharon responds "There are certain
categories of products that we are registered for
and circle R should be used with those goods. With
products that do not fall into those categories, a
TM should be used. When you submit your artwork on
Trademarx you will be told if a change is needed.
Your ottoman table storage unit will need to have a
TM. Please let me know if you have any other
questions."

Q. Thank you. I would like to show you
what we will mark as Applicant's 9D, which is an
email string between Ms. Dudding and Stacy Zellner

dated June 1, 2011.
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(Applicant's Exhibit 9D, Email, marked

for identification.)

Q. Could you please tell me what this

email reflects?

A. This is an email between Sharon Dudding
and College Concepts. She is re-forwarding the LRG
email from March 15 and is advising her, Stacy
Zellner is her name, "There are certain categories

of products that we are registered for and circle R

‘should be used with those goods.

L

do not fall into those categories, a TM should be
used. When you submit your artwork on Trademarx you

will be told if a change is needed. No new artwork

page will be added."

Ms. Zellner responds "Thank you for

your rely. I will forward to our art department so

they are aware of these TM and circle R

requirements."

Q. I would like to show you next what
we'll mark as Applicant's Exhibit E, an email string

between Ms. Dudding and Debra at Treasures &

Trinkets dated June 8, 2011.

(Applicant's Exhibit 9E, Email, marked

for identification.)

With products that
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1 Q. Ms. Norris, could you please describe

2 to me what exhibit, Applicant's Exhibit 9E reflects?
3 A. It's an email exchange June 8, 2011

4 between Ms. Dudding and treasure-trinkets.com.

5 Treasure & Trinkets is asking "May I ask why this

6 product needs a TM instead of the circle R? I've

7 looked at the logo in the EPS file posted here and

8 it has a circle R. Other products I've seen out in
9 the marketplace, such as watches, USB sticks,

10 T-shirts, hats, et cetera, all have the circle R."
11 And Sharon responds "There are certain
12 categories of products that we are registered for
13 and circle R should be used with those goods. With
14 products that do not fall within those categories, a
15 TM should be used, in this case is a bracelet. When
16 you submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be

17 told if a change is needed."

18 She goes on to say "There was an email
19 that went out from LRG around March 15th or 1éth.
20 Virginia Tech has requested that LRG forward the
21 following update to their graphic identity program
22 on their behalf." And then she forwards, again, the
23 rest of the message that went out on March 15th.
24 Q. Thank you. I will like to show you
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1 what we will mark as Applicant's Exhibit 9F, an

2 email exchange between Ms. Dudding and

3 elevenwest.com dated June 9, 2011.

4 (Applicant's Exhibit 9F, Email, marked
5 for identification.)

6 Q. Can you describe for me what is

7 reflected in the June 9th email, which is

8 Applicant's Exhibit 9F?

9 A. This is an email from Sharon Dudding to
10 Eleven West, one of our licensees, and she is

11 forwarding, again, the March 15, 2011 email from LRG
12 and is advising them "There are certain categories
13 of products that we are registered for and circle R
14 should be used with those goods. With products that
15 fall in those categories, a TM should be used. When
16 you submit your artwork on Trademarx, you will be

17 told if a change is needed."

18 Q. Thank you. I would like to show you

19 what we will mark as Applicant's 9G, which is an

20 email string between Locke White and Steve Hollar,
21 dated June 15, 2011.
22 (Applicant's Exhibit 9G, Email, marked
23 for identification.)
24 Q. Could you describe for me what is
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reflected by Applicant's 9G?

A. It's an email exchange between Steve
Hollar and Locke White regarding their product and
artwork approval. They had several questions to
which Locke responded within the email to -- in one
place he asks "My products generally fall into two
material categories: Glassware and Corian products.
I understand that each product needs to have its own
TM/R decision, but as a general rule for me to
initially produce a product for approval."

And Locke responds "The determination
as to whether a product needs a circle R or a TM is
based on what the product is and not what it is made
of. For instance, Hokies is registered for a number
of different categories of products like precious
metals, paper articles, and clothing. Under each
major category there is a specific list of products.
For instance, in the category of clothing there are
T-shirts, sports shirts, sweat pants, and others.

If a product is on the list, like T-shirts, it would
get a circle R. If, however, the product was socks,
it would get a TM because socks is not listed."

He goes down further in No. 3 down the

page and Steve Hollar asks "Does Hokies, which
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normally has the R mark, also have a TM issue? 1In
other words, if I'm instructed to use the TM for the
VT logo on a particular product, I can assume that
if I use the Hokies phrase on that product should
also use the TM with Hokies on that product?"

And Locke White responds "The
determination of circle R or TM for Hokies is,
again, made case by case for each product. However,
the name Hokie singular will always get the TM, no
matter what the product is."

Q. Thank you. To your knowledge, do these
sorts of inquiries still come into Ms. Dudding?

A. Yes, they do.

Q. And does she respond in a similar
manner to the way she responded in Applicant's
Exhibits 9A through 9G?

A. Very much so. I don't think she's
routinely forwarding an email that is that old, but
she explains to them that the TM should always be
used with the singular Hokie.

Q. And is that the policy of the
University to this day that the use of the Hokie
trademark should always be used in connection with

the TM designation as opposed to the R in a circle
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1 designation?

2 A. Yes, it is.

3 Q. I would like to mark as Exhibit 10,

4 Applicant's Exhibit 10 some screen shots from the

5 MyiCLC artwork page.

6 (Applicant Exhibit 10, Screen shots,

7 marked for identification.)

8 Q. Could you please describe for me what

9 you have in front of you that's identified as

10 Applicant's Exhibit 107?

11 A. These are screen shots of artwork that
12 come through through the MyiCLC system, which is the
13 online system that licensees currently submit their
14 artwork through and that Ms. Dudding approves or

15 disapproves or suggests changes to.

16 Q. Now, before you testified that your

17 licensing agent, LRG, had an online system called

18 Trademarx. Correct?

19 A. Correct.

20 Q. And subsequently you switched licensing
21 agents. Correct?
22 A. Yes, July 1st of 2012 we switched to

23 Collegiate Licensing Company and their system is
24 MyicCLC.
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1 Q. And is that similar to the LRG

2 Trademarx system?

3 A, It is similar in that the artwork is

4 submitted there for approval, yes.

5 Q. Can you just describe for us what is

6 shown, for example, on the first page of Applicant

7 Exhibit 10 which is Bates stamped VT-HOOS, period

8 HOOS, H-0-0-S, and then 000001.

9 A. These are screen shots from the artwork
10 system. On the right-hand side is a shot of the

11 artwork as it's been submitted and on the left-hand
12 side are the comments to the vendor as to what needs
13 to be done. 1In the first case this is artwork with
14 a "VI" inside of a heart and then "Hokie Love."

15 Hokie here has a circle R on it. And Virginia Tech,
16 in this case Sharon Dudding, is telling them to

17 please replace the registered mark on Hokie with a
18 ™.

19 Q. What is the date of those comments?
20 A. September 19, 2012.
21 Q. And can you describe what you see on
22 the second page, Bates page 27
23 A. It is the same type of page with the
24 artwork on the right-hand side and comments on the

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
3155 W. Main St., Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017



Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LLC v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.
Bobbi Jean Norris on 05/12/2016 Page 29

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

left. The artwork has a Hokie with a circle R state
of mind with VT under it. And on September 24th,
Virginia Tech responded "For the word Hokie, please
replace the registered mark with a TM."

Q. From your review of Applicant Exhibit
10, is it fair to say that, without having to go
through each and every page, that the remaining
pages of the Applicant Exhibit 10 show similar uses
of Hokie by the licensee, and Ms. Dudding asking the
licensee to replace the R in a circle with a TM
designation?

A. Yes. The dates go from 2012 into 2014,
excuse me, 2015.

Q. And Ms. Dudding is still operating in
the same manner where she reviews each of the
submissions by the licensees, and if there is an
improper use of the TM or R in a circle designation,
she corrects it and informs the licensee about the
proper usage. Correct?

A. Yes, that's correct, her
responsibilities are essentially the same.

Q. Now, I believe that Mr. Hincker
testified that the policies and procedures manual

was revised as well as part of implementing this

Central Virginia Reporters www.huseby.com
3155 W. Main St. , Salem, VA 24153 (540) 380-5017



Hokie Objective Onomastics Society LL.C v. Virginia Polytechnic Institute, et al.
Bobbi Jean Norris on 05/12/2016 Page 30

1 policy to use the TM instead of the R in the circle
2 with the Hokie mark. Is that correct?

3 A. Yes, it was. We did that in the summer
4 of 2011, July, I believe.

5 Q. I would like to mark as Applicant's

6 Exhibit 11 for identification the relevant pages

7 from the Virginia Tech University Relations Policy

8 and Procedure Manual revised July of 2011.

9 (Applicant's Exhibit 11, Manual, marked
10 for identification.)
11 Q. Can you tell me what change was made in
12 the policy and procedures manual as of July 20117

13 A. As it relates to the licensing section,
14 which is what's presented here, it starts on page 30
15 and goes to 35, I think, yes, top of 36. The most
16 significant changes were on page 32 and 33 where we
17 broke out the registered marks from the trademarks
18 and added the Hokie with the TM into the list of

19 marks.
20 Q. And the Hokie with the TM as shown on
21 page 33. Correct?
22 A. Yes, and it states that "The University
23 also uses the following marks which must always bear
24 the TM trademark symbol." It lists Hokie TM as the
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1 first mark.

2 Q. Thank you. Have any other changes been
3 made or steps taken to make sure that TM is always

4 used in connection with the Hokie trademark?

5 A. Yes. We are always trying to make sure
6 we have better communication with our licensees.

7 The most recent change to the artwork sheet was made
8 in September of 2015.

9 Q. Let's mark as Applicant's Exhibit 12

10 the September 15 -- September 2015 artwork page.

11 (Applicant's Exhibit 12, Artwork page,
12 marked for identification.)

13 Q. What was the revision to the artwork

14 page that was made in September of 20157

15 A. We've previously had two artwork pages,
16 one for the R and one for the TM. And what we did
17 in this case was we put all of the TMs on the first
18 page and we added, changed the second page to

19 include just the registered marks and the classes
20 for which they are registered. That way it is
21 clearer for our licensees to tell which ones need

22 the circle R mark.
23 At the top of the first page in the
24 verbiage section, again, we have Hokie listed with
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1 the TM and we have a note on the bottom right-hand

2 side that says "Note, some of Virginia Tech's marks
3 require different designations, TM versus R,

4 depending on the product category. Please consult

5 the chart on the following page for a list of all of
6 the products in which each mark is Federally

7 registered."

8 The artwork page is on CLC's website

9 for vendors and the logos are in their

10 logo-on-demand system so the vendors can go in there
11 and pull off the logos for actual use.

12 Q. Now, from your testimony, it is clear
13 that the University has taken a number of steps to
14 implement the policy that its licensees always use
15 the TM designation in connection with the Hokie

16 trademark as opposed to the R in a circle

17 registration.

18 My question to you, Ms. Norris, is from
19 time to time do you become aware of instances where
20 licensees are not properly using the TM designation
21 in connection with the Hokie trademark?
22 A. Sure, it comes up, and when it does
23 come up we look into it and we take action if it's
24 appropriate. Often it's -- we find that it's old
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merchandise that has actually been out there since
prior 2010 when we find these violations.

Other times, recently, for example, we
actually suspended a license of someone who had
continued to use the R with the Hokie mark, even
though we had repeatedly asked them to discontinue
it.

Q. And I would like to mark as Applicant's
Exhibit 13 a letter dated April 28, 2016 from
Collegiate Licensing, your licensing agent, to your
licensee, Virginia Diner, Inc.

(Applicant's Exhibit 13, Letter

4/28/16, marked for identification.)

Q. Could you tell me what Applicant
Exhibit 13 is?

A. It's a letter from LaTonya Washington,
associate counsel at Collegiate Licensing Company,
to Scott Stephens at Virginia Diner, Inc. dated
April 28, 2016. It was sent at our request.

Q. What was the issue here?

A. The issue was they produce and sell a
product called Hokie Nuts and Hokie Nuts was using
the wrong label. We had talked with them several

times and had correspondence with them several times
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that they needed to discontinue the use. We allowed

2 them to go through the labels that they had at the
3 time, that goes back to probably 2013 or 2014. But
4 they had been instructed that once they went through
5 those they had to stop.

6 At the spring game this year we found
7 that -- we found that they were still selling them
8 with the R instead of the TM. And when contacted,
9 they admitted that they had printed more --

10 inadvertently printed more labels and were using

11 them. We felt we had no choice other than to

12 suspend their license until they corrected the

13 problem.

14 Q. Thank you. I would like to ask you a
15 couple of questions regarding the documents that we
16 looked at this morning, specifically documents

17 Applicant's Exhibit 4 through 13. Were each of

18 these records made in the regular course of

19 business?

20 A. Yes, they were.
21 Q. And to the extent these records were
22 not made by Virginia Tech, were they received by
23 Virginia Tech in the regular course of business?

24 A. Yes, they were.
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1 Q. Were the records ones that were

2 routinely made and kept in the regular course of

3 business?

4 A. Yes.

5 Q. To your knowledge, were the records

6 made at or near the time of the events that are

7 recorded in the various emails, et cetera, that we
8 looked at?

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Were the records made by a person with
11 knowledge of the information that was being

12 transmitted?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. And are these documents that we looked
15 at, these various exhibits, used and relied upon by
16 Virginia Tech in the transaction of its business?
17 A. Yes.

18 MR. WEISBEIN: I would like to move

19 into evidence all of the exhibits that Ms.
20 Norris testified about, which would be
21 Applicant's Exhibits 4 through 13. Are there
22 any objections?
23 MR. FINCH: No objections.
24 ///
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1 (Exhibit 4 - 13 were moved into

2 evidence.)

3 Q. Ms. Norris, I have no further

4 questions.

5 MR. FINCH: Can we take a break and let
6 us confer outside?

7 MR. WEISBEIN: Sure.

8 (A recess was taken from 10:37 a.m. to
9 10:45 a.m.)

10 CROSS EXAMINATION

11 BY MR. FINCH:

12 Q. Ms. Norris, I'm looking at Applicant's
13 Exhibit 8, which is the Non-Exclusive Trademark

14 Licensing Agreement, and I see from Section 7.2 on
15 page 5 that the licensee is supposed to obtain

16 royalties quarterly in April, July, October, and

17 January. Is that right?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. Did Virginia Tech generate a list of
20 all licensees paying royalties and send
21 communications to them explaining the difference
22 between the TM symbol and the circle R symbol?
23 A. Virginia Tech asked LRG to email them
24 in March of 2011 as it relates to the Hokie mark.
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1 Q. Let me phrase the question differently,
2 and with a bit of context.

3 Several of these exhibits, in fact, the
4 majority of the exhibits that were introduced during
5 your direct testimony involve licensees writing to

6 Virginia Tech with questions about using the TM or

7 the circle R. Right?

8 MR. WEISBEIN: I object to the form of
9 the question.

10 Q. I will go ahead and repeat the question
11 and I would like for you to answer it.

12 We've got several emails, mostly in

13 Exhibit 9A and 9B and so forth, in which licensees
14 write to Virginia Tech with questions about using

15 the TM or circle R. Right?

16 A. Yes.

17 Q. These communications were initiated by
18 the licensees?

19 A. Without looking at each one that we
20 presented, most likely.

21 Q. I see. Well, we can, for example, look
22 at Exhibit 9, the first of these, if you can take a
23 look at that.
24 Now, this is a message from Lorraine
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1 Watts to Sharon Dudding. Right?

2 MR. WEISBEIN: Just so the record is

3 clear, Applicant's Exhibit 9A, not 9.

4 MR. FINCH: I apologize.

5 Q. So Virginia Tech didn't initiate

6 contact in connection with this issue?

7 A, Not this particular email.

8 Q. In fact, none of the exhibits, Exhibit
9 9A and none of the Exhibit 9 exhibits involve

10 initiation of contact by Virginia Tech related to

11 the circle R versus TM issue. Correct?

12 A. Again, I can't say that without looking
13 at each one of them. Actually the one 9C, the

14 initial email is from Sharon to Decorative Walls and
15 Creative Art, she started the string of emails. And
16 in --

17 Q. But if I may, that related to an

18 insurance certificate. Correct?

19 A. The initial email did, yes.
20 Q. So it was the licensee that wrote back
21 asking about TM versus circle R?
22 A. Actually the initial question is "The
23 Virginia Tech ottoman that I'm building will be
24 constructed without the end caps mark." It is not
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1 clear what she's asking about.

2 Q. I understand.

3 A. And the one with Karla Kohlmann dated

4 April 21, 2011, was actually initiated within the

5 Trademarx online system.

6 Q. Which exhibit number is that?

7 A, That is 9B. It was originated within

8 the system. It does appear 4imprint initiated the

9 comment, "Resubmitting again, but there is a TM

10 after Virginia Tech. If you need the Hokie logo TM
11 instead of the circle R please refer to the logo."
12 Q. That was in connection with approval of
13 new artwork?

14 A. I can't tell you if it's new artwork or
15 artwork being resubmitted.

16 Q. But one of those?

17 A. Yes. O9F is an email from Sharon to

18 Eleven West. 1It's not clear how that originated

19 because there's no email from Eleven West on there.
20 Q. Uh-hmm.

21 A, 9E was initiated by Treasure & Trinkets
22 through the Trademarx online system.
23 Q. Okay.
24 A, 9G, the full email string is not here,
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but the email from Steve Hollar started with "Yes, I
have a few more questions." Steve Hollar was a
licensee. I think that's all of them.

Q. Now, you also testified with respect to
Exhibit 10, which is from the Trademark Approval
System online?

A. Yes, the MyiCLC.

Q. So these involve licensees submitting
new artwork or resubmitting old artwork. 1Is that
it?

A, It could be either.

Q. If a licensee did not write to Virginia
Tech like in the email messages that we saw in
Exhibit 9 or submit new artwork or resubmit old
artwork as we see in Exhibit 10, did Virginia Tech

take any actilion with respect to those licensees?

A. I am not sure I understand your
question.
Q. Suppose a licensee did not write to

Sharon or somebody else at Virginia Tech saying,
"Should I use the circle R or TM?" And also did not
submit new artwork or resubmit old artwork, okay?

So the licensee is just silent, they are not doing

anything in response to the LRG email, if they
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received that.
Would Virginia Tech take any action

with respect to that licensing?

A. I think it would depend on the
situation.
Q. Well, suppose the licensee was paying

royalties? If a licensee is paying royalties, then
it must be making sales. Right?

A. Yes.

Q. I am seeing several of these messages,
I will just take one at random, Exhibit 9E, which is
a message from Sharon Dudding to Treasuries &
Trinkets, and it includes the text of the LRG
message.

The last sentence of the LRG message is

"Please remember that you are required to submit all

artwork for every production run, even if the

artwork has been approved in the past." Right?
A. Yes, that's what it says.
Q. So any licensee who is paying royalties

to Virginia Tech must be making sales. Correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And Virginia Tech would receive those

payments on a quarterly basis?
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1 A. Yes.

2 Q. So if Virginia Tech had not received

3 any new artwork or resubmitted artwork from a

4 licensee or if they hadn't communicated to Virginia

5 Tech like in these emails from Exhibit 9, would

6 Virginia Tech contact them and ask them why they

7 hadn't submitted their artwork or resubmitted their

8 artwork?

9 A. Just because they hadn't submitted any
10 artwork did not mean they did not have product out
11 there they were already selling. There would be no
12 way to look at the royalty report unless it was a
13 new licensee and determine whether they submitted
14 work.

15 Q. Did Virginia Tech generate a list of
16 all licensees paying royalties and ask them why they
17 hadn't submitted new artwork or resubmitted old
18 artwork?
19 A. No.
20 Q. The message said: Submit all artwork
21 for every production run even if it had already been
22 approved in the past?
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. So Virginia Tech took no steps to
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enforce that last sentence of the LRG message.

Right?

A. I don't believe that's an accurate
representation.

Q. Well, what did Virginia Tech do to make

sure that these people who kept on paying royalties
quarter after quarter year after year were in
compliance with the new requirement to use the TM
symbol instead of the circle R symbol?

A, Our licensing agent periodically
conducts audits of licensees. If they find problems

then they report it to us.

Q. And how often does that happen?

A. How often does what happen?

Q. You said periodically. What's the
period?

A, It varies depending on the schedule.

They have hundreds of universities that they audit
for and that they are an agent for. They wrap the
audits together, so it varies depending on their
schedule.

Q. Did they actually audit any of your
licensees during the period between the sending of

this LRG email in mid March 2011 and now?
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1 A. I don't know.

2 Q. Did Virginia Tech go back and look at
3 all the old artwork by licensees who were paying

4 royalties to see if any of those required

5 correction?

6 A. No, we did not.

7 Q. Did anyone from Virginia Tech visit

8 stores on campus to check and see whether any

9 merchandise bearing the term Hokie with a circle R
10 was for sale there?

11 A. Yes, we did.

12 Q. And when did you make those visits?

13 A. I can't give you exact dates, our

14 licensing director goes out periodically and visits
15 with all of the local vendors.

16 Q. Well, I was asking about the stores on
17 campus in particular.

18 A. All of the University bookstores?

19 Q. Yes.

20 A. Yes, she is to go out to those, too. I
21 go out to those periodically.
22 Q. There is more than one place that
23 things are sold on campus besides just the
24 University bookstore. Right? There's like stuff
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sold at the athletic venues. Right?

A. Those are all -- that's from the
bookstore.
Q. Okay, I am thinking of the building the

bookstore, but the bookstore is an entity that runs
all of that operation, is that it?

A. The bookstore runs the operation in the
coliseum and the location outside of the coliseum.

Q. Did anyone at Virginia Tech tell the
bookstore to step selling merchandise with Hokie in
the circle R mark?

A. No, we did not. We didn't tell any of
our vendors to stop selling the merchandise that
they already had in circulation. It was on a going-
forward basis we decided that there was little
likelihood of confusion in the market and we didn't
agree with the position anyway, so we left it out
there and told them they could go through the
inventory that they had in stock.

Q. Thanks. My question was about the
bookstore. I will ask the same question about local
vendors here in Blacksburg, that is to say did
anybody in Virginia Tech go and check those stores

to see whether they were selling merchandise with
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the circle R and the term Hokie?

A, As I said in reference to the
bookstore, our licensing director goes out on a
regular basis with local vendors and checks.

Q. Did that licensing director check to
see whether merchandise with Hokie in the circle R
was being sold at those locations?

A. I don't know if it was done at the
time. Again, we didn't think it was really
significant because we had told them not to do it
going forward.

Q. Would it surprise you to know that it
was still possible to buy products with Hokie in the
circle R on campus in July of 2013?

A. Not necessarily. As I mentioned
before, some of them had large stocks and we told
them they could sell it until it was gone.

Q. Would it surprise you to know that
products were being manufactured with the term Hokie
and the circle R in November of 20127?

A. Again, there is human error involved.
Even though we tell people, sometimes it happens
regardless. We have a very stringent process of

following up when we do find it happens.
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1 Q. Turning now to Applicant's Exhibit 13,
2 this is a letter from last month to Virginia Diner.
3 When did Virginia Tech first learn that Virginia

4 Diner was selling products with the incorrect

5 labeling?

6 A. I don't know exactly. I know we've had
7 correspondence with them back to probably 2013.

8 Q. Didn't Virginia Tech receive an image

9 of an improperly labeled Hokie Nuts package using

10 the circle R with the word Hokie in January/February
11 2010 in connection with the Hokie Real Estate case?
12 A. I don't recall.

13 Q. Wasn't Hokie Nuts identified as one of
14 these mislabeled products in the discovery response
15 in connection with that case?

16 A. I believe it was.

17 Q. Now, you testified with respect to

18 Exhibit 13 that Virginia Diner initially was

19 notified of the problem with its labeling but was
20 given the opportunity to exhaust its then-existing
21 stocks of product. Right?

22 A. Exhaust its existing stock of labels.
23 Q. Thank you. So when Virginia Tech gave
24 Virginia Diner that permission, how did it inform
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Virginia Diner that it was giving that permission?

A. I don't recall if it was by an email or
phone call. There was a lot of back and forth
between the two.

Q. When that back and forth took place,
how many more incorrect labels did Virginia Diner
propose to continue using?

A. I don't remember. They had two
products: One is in a can and one is in the bags.
The cans they corrected immediately because they did
not have as many of the labels for the cans. It was
the bagged product that they had a lot of labels
left and they asked permission to sell those
through. We told them they could. And we thought
they had sold through and we found out that last
year they were -- they had not sold them through.

Sales were lower than they expected and
they were continuing to sell them, at which time we
told them that was it. They had to stop
immediately. He said he would, but that was in the
fall of 2015. And again, when we found them at the
spring game after he had committed to us in the fall
of 2015 that he would no longer use them, that's

when we issued this.
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1 Q. You may not remember how many labels

2 there were at the time when you first talked about

3 it, but do you know whether you discussed a

4 particular amount?

5 A. I don't.

6 Q. When you initially gave permission to

7 Virginia Diner to sell out product using its

8 existing stock of labels, was there any kind of

9 deadline by which they had to finish using those

10 labels?

11 A. No specific deadline. It was our

12 understanding that he would be able to sell through
13 them during the sports season because they are sold
14 primarily in the, and maybe only in the coliseum

15 and the stadium. It was our understanding that he
16 would be selling through them that sports season.

17 Q. Which sports season was that?

18 A. That would have been the '14/'15

19 academic year.

20 Q. Did Virginia Tech receive royalties for
21 each of these products that it allowed Virginia
22 Diner to continue selling with the incorrect labels?
23 A. Yes, we received royalties from

24 Virginia Diner.
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1 0. How much were those royalties?

2 A. I don't know.

3 Q. This letter, Exhibit 13, does it

4 terminate Virginia Diner's license?

5 A. No, it suspends it.

6 Q. It is possible that Virginia Tech could
7 continue to do business with Virginia Diner. Right?
8 A. Yes.

9 Q. Did Virginia Diner respond to this

10 letter?

11 A, Not that I have seen, not in writing.
12 Q. Oh, so was there a verbal response?

13 A. My understanding is that our licensing
14 director has talked with him.

15 Q. And what did Virginia Diner say?

16 A. I don't know. I haven't gone into it
17 in any detail with her.

18 Q. Did Virginia Diner re-call the

19 mislabeled products that it had already sent out to
20 retailers?

21 A. I don't know, but what the letter asks
22 them to do is send all retail remaining merchandise
23 to CLC for disposition. I don't know if that's been
24 completed yet.
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1 Q. This item 2 on the first page of

2 Exhibit 13 that you just referred to, it seems to me
3 that it only requires Virginia Diner to send back

4 whatever merchandise Virginia Diner has in its

5 possession. Right?

6 A. It says "Send all retail remaining

7 merchandise."

8 Q. So what i1f Virginia Diner has already

9 sent some nuts on to a third party, what happens

10 then?

11 A. I don't know that it's addressed here.
12 That would be a question to follow up with CLC on.
13 Q. Is Virginia Tech still receiving

14 royalties on bagged nuts from Virginia Diner?

15 A. I'm not sure I follow the question.

16 Q. Well, looking again at Exhibit 8,

17 Section 7.2, royalty payments are supposed to be

18 made in April, July, October, and January. Did

19 Virginia Diner make an April royalty payment?

20 A. This 1s the LRG contract. We are now
21 under a CLC contract. And I don't know off the top
22 of my head what the CLC contract requires.
23 0. Do you know if the new contract changes
24 the royalty payment schedule?
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1 A. I don't know.

2 Q. Did Virginia Diner send all of its

3 remaining retail merchandise to CLC as directed in

4 Exhibit 137

5 MR. WEISBEIN: Objection. Asked and

6 answered. You can answer it again.

7 A. I don't know. This is relatively

8 recent. I don't know if they completed any or all

9 of these steps at this time. It is only two weeks
10 old.

11 Q. How many other licensees were treated
12 like Virginia Diner?

13 A. This is the only one we've suspended at
14 this time that I'm aware of. We have sent cease and
15 desist letters to others.

16 Q. Over the circle R versus TM issues?

17 A. I can't say for sure.

18 Q. I have no more questions.

19 MR. WEISBEIN: Okay, let's take a
20 break, I might have a few.
21 (A recess was taken from 11:10 a.m. to
22 11:14 a.m.)
23 ///

24 ///
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. WEISBEIN:
Q. I just have a few questions. So

Ms. Norris, can you look at Applicant's Exhibit 6,

please.
A. Sorry, they are out of order.
Q. That's okay. Take your time.
A. Here it is.
Q. And just state for the record what

Exhibit 6 is.

A. This is the email from LRG to all of
our licensees dated March 15, 2011 transmitting a
note from Locke White regarding use of the circle R
and the TM.

Q. And the note was that there -- that the
licensees are to use TM in connection with the mark
Hokie?

A. Yes. It says "The singular form Hokie
should now always be designated with TM."

Q. At the time this transmission was sent,
well, strike that.

So the instructions to LRG, were they
not, were that this email should be sent to all of

Virginia Tech's trademark licensees. Correct?
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1 A. Yes, it was.

2 Q. At the time in March of 2011,

3 approximately how many licensees did Virginia Tech

4 have?

5 A. Around 600.

6 Q. And do you have any reason to believe

7 that the email reflected in Applicant's Exhibit 6

8 was not sent by LRG to all 600 or so licensees?

9 A. No. As far as we know it was sent to
10 everyone.

11 Q. In fact, some of the emails that you

12 saw to Ms. Dudding were licensees who had questions
13 about that email. Correct?

14 A. Yes, they were.

15 Q. And how many licensees do you currently
16 have -- does Virginia Tech currently have?

17 A. Between 450 and 500.

18 Q. Could you approximate on an annual

19 basis how many artwork approvals the licensing

20 department receives from its 450 to 500 licensees?
21 A. Between 8,000 and 10,000 annually.
22 0. Would it be fair to say that the wvast
23 majority of your licensees submit artwork as

24 required under the terms of the licensing agreement?
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A. Yes, they do. And when we find that
they haven't, we contact them and take appropriate
action.

Q. Thank you.

MR. WEISBEIN: I have no further
questions.

MR. FINCH: Okay.

(The deposition concluded at 11:16 a.m.)
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CERTIVFICATE
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
COUNTY OF ROANOKE

I, Katherine P. Ford, Notary Public in and
for the Commonwealth of Virginia, at Large, do
hereby certify that the Deposition of BOBBI J.

NORRIS was by me reduced to machine shorthand in the
presence of the witness, afterwards transcribed
under my direction by means of computer, that
reading and signing was not requested, and that to
the best of my ability the foregoing is a true and
correct transcript of the Deposition as aforesaid.

I further certify that this Deposition was
taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption
specified.

I further certify that I am not a
relative, counsel or attorney for either party or
otherwise interested in the outcome of this action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand at Roanoke, Virginia, on this the 19th day of

May, 2016.

Katherine P. Ford, RPR
Notary Public No. 166385

My commission expires February 28, 2019.
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EXHIBIT 4



Dudding. Sharon

From: Kevin Phillips <Kevin@lrgusa.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 11.07 AM
To: Dudding, Sharon

Subject: RE: VT Artwork Request

Okay, | will get this added today.

Kevin Phillips

Marketing Manager
Licensing Resource Group
Phone- 616-395-0676 ext.1 18
Fax- 616-395-2517
kevin@lrgusa.com

From: Dudding, Sharon [mailto:duddings@vt.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, June 03, 2010 11:02 AM

To: Kevin Phillips

Subject: FW: VT Artwork Request

Thank you Kevin, no “Hokie” without the s will have the TM. “Hokies™ with the s has the circle r.
Sharon

Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Manager

Southgate Drive 0161

Blacksburg VA 24061

Ph-540-231-3748

Fax-540-231-3878

Pt ot P S ot ot D Pt Pt ot Pt Pt g ot Pt Pt Pk i Pt s Bt s Pt Pt Pk

From: Kevin Phillips [mailto:Kevin@Iirgusa.com)
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 9:57 AM

To: Dudding, Sharon )

Subject: RE: VT Artwork Reguest

Sharon,

! would be happy to add “Hokie” to your verbiage section , does this require a Circle R next to it like the others you have listed?

Kevin Phillips

Marketing Manager

Licensing Resource Group — ;

Phone- 616-395-0676 ext. 18 e T EXHIBT_Sf

Fax- 616-395-2517 WITNESS V07715

kevin@lrgusa.com DATE: 5-/2 - /&
KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

VT.HOQOS 000106




B

W

¥

From: Tina Olson

Sent: Wednesday, June 03, 2010 9:50 AM
To: Kevin Phillips

Cc: 'Dudding, Sharon'

Subject: VT Artwork Request

Hi Kevin,

Please see the request below from Sharon @ VT. If you have questions, feel free to cantact her directly... her # is below.

Tina Olson

Licensing Resource Group
2570 Holiday Road, Suite 250
Coralville, 1A 52241

Phone: 319-351-1776 ext. 3
Fax: 319-351-1978

From: Dudding, Sharon {mailto:duddings@vt.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, June 09, 2010 6:56 AM

To: Tina Olson

Subject: trademarx

Could you please have the person who updates our artwork page on trademarx to add
Hokie~

Thank youl!

Sharon Dudding
Virginia Tech
Licensing Manager
Southgate Drive 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878

St ot oot Pt Mot It Bt Bt T P P P S ot Pt Pt It P P Pt P T Ot et ot

VT.HOOS 000107
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Attachment A
Trademarks of Virginia Tech

| UNIVERSITY MARKS |

@VirginiaTech. @ VirginiaTech.

Invent the Future

@ViginiaTech.  @VirginiaTech.

Invent the Future

T VirginiaTech.

invent the Future

WVirginiaTech.

M VirginiaTech. VirginiaTech.

invent the Future

Aghicett EXHIBIT S A
WITNESS _NOCNiS

DATE: 51 27/
KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

University Colors Pantone® Colors Process Colors

Virginia Tech Maroon For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks is prohibited without the
approvail of Virginia Tech and the Licensing Rescurce Group, inc. Fer
licensing information, please contact LRG at {616) 395-0676.

www.trademarxonline.com Page 1

11



VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

| PrMARY SPORTS MARKS |

| sEconDARY SPORTS MARKS |

The colors shown on this page have not been evakiaied by Pantons, inc. for accuracy and may not match the PANTONE
COLOR INFORMATION Color $tandards. Conault currant PANTONE Publieations for scournete color. PANTONE® and other Pantons, Inc. trademarks
are the property of Pantone, Inc. Portionsd Partone, inc., 2010,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS

For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 CAD% M:100% Y:50% KA3%

For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONED 158 C:0% M:85% Y:80% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks Is prohiblied without the approval of
Wrginla Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, inc.
For Iicensing information, please contact LRG at {618) 385-0676.

www. trsdemarnxaoniine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH

FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

I cHiLo marks |

Virginia Polytechnic institute and State University®
Virginia Tech®

Hokies®

Virginia Tech Hokles®

Invent the Future®

HokieBird®

The colors shown an this page have not been evaluated by Pantone, Inc. for accuracy and may not mstch the PANTONE

COL OR ]NFORMA 'r]ON Cotor Standards. ComuR currert FPANTONE Publications for sccurats color. PANTONES and other Pantone, Inc. trademarks

UNIVERSITY COLORS

Virgiea Toch

are the property of Pantone, inc. Portions® Pantons, Inc., 2010,

PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS

For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

For Virgérnéa Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158 C:0% MB3% Y:90% K.0%

Reproduction of any fogos or wordmarks is prohibited without the approval of
Virginta Tech and thie Licensing Resource Group, Inc.
For licensing information, please contact LRG at {616) 395-0676.

www.tradermnarxonline.com
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VIRGINIA TECH

FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

1 HOKIE VINTAGE MARKS

+

COLOR INFORMATION

UNIVERSITY COLORS

Virgerua Tech Maroon

The colors shown on this page have not besn syziusted by Pamtone, inc. for sccurscy and may not match the PANTONE

ars the property of Pantens, inc. Portions® Partons, inc., 2010,

Color Standards. Cansult curmant PANTONE Pubiications for accurate color. FANTONES and othar Pantons, Inc. trademarks

PANTONE® COLORS

PROCESS COLORS

For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208

C40% M100% Y.50% K:15%

| For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158

C:0% M:65% Y.90% K. 0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks is prohiblted without the approval of

Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, Inc.
For licensing information, please contact LRG at {§16) 39506786.

www.trademarxonfine.com

14




VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

1 VIRGINIA TECH TARTAN |

Note:

The Tartan was designed in 2008 by Matthew A.C. Newsome of the Scottish Tartans
Museum in Franklin, North Carolina. It is recorded with the Scottish Tartans Authority in
Perthshire, Scotiand, in the international Tartan index as number 7663.

Thread count information is as follows:

Mn12 Or4 Mn72 Or36 Mn4 Ori2 We B8

Mn= maroon; Or= orange; W= white B= blue

The numbers represent the number of threads, but they are there to indicate a ratio rather

than a prescribed number. In other words, you can increase or decrease the number of
threads to achieve a farger or smaller pattern, so jong as the ratio remains the same.

Ths colors shiownm on thix page have not been eysiuated by Partone, inc. for accurscy and may not match the PANTONE
COLOR INFORMATION Color Standards, Consuk current PANTONE Publictions for accurats color. PANTONE® and other Pentone, inc. tradsmarks
ure the proparty of Pantons, inc. Portions® Parvtons, inc., 2010,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
Virguua Tech Idavoon For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:80% K15%
o For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks Is prohibited without the approval of
Mrginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, Inc.
For Hcensing information, please contact LRG at (616) 385-06786.

veww. trademanconiine.com
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Attachment A
Trademarks of Virginia Tech

| unmversTy marks |

@ VirginiaTech. [ VirginiaTech.

Invent the Future

EVirginiaTech. @ VirginiaTech.

invent the Future

T VirginiaTech. L VirginiaTech.

invent the Future

M VirginiaTech. il ® VirginiaTech.

Invent the Future

PPl EXHIBIT_S [
W‘TNESSM.,@___

DATE: 5 {2 W/ (a
KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

University Colors Pantone® Colors Process Colors

Virginia Tech Maroon For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks is prohibited without the
approval of Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, Inc. For
licensing information, piease contact LRG at (616} 395-0676.

www.trademarxonline.com Page 1
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VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

| PRIMARY SPORTS MARKS |

| seconNDARY SPORTS MARKS |

The colors shown onthis pags have not bean svsluated by Pantons, inc. for accuracy and may rict match the PANTONE
COLOR ,NFORMA’”ON Calor Standards. ContuR cusvent PANTONE Publicstions for sccursts color. PANTONES and pther Pantone, inc. trademarks
are the property of Pantone, inc. Portions Pamtans, inc., 2010,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS

For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

| For virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE®D 158 C:0% M:65% Y'90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks is prohibited without the approval of
Virginla Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, inc.
For licensing information, please contact LRG at (616) 395-0676.

www. trademarxoniine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

| cHiLo Marks ]

Virginia Polytechnic institute and State University®
Virginia Tech®

Hokies®

Virginia Tech Hokies®

Invent the Future®

HokieBird®

Hokie™

The colore ahown on thig page have not besn svaluated by Pamons, inc. for accumcy snd may not match the PANTONE
COLOR INF ORMATION Color Stantards. Consult current PANTONE Publications for accurtte color. PANTONESD and other Pantons, inc. trademarks
are the property of Pantons, Inz. Portions® Pantone, ine., 2010.

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS

For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONER 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONER 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks Is prohibked without the approval of
Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, Inc.
For licensing information, please contact LRG at {616) 395-0675.

www.tradermarxoniine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

| HOKIE VINTAGE MARKS |

-

The colors shows on this pags have not heen sysiusted by Pantones, inc. for accuracy and may not mateh the PANTONE
COL O R fN F O RM A TI O N Color Standards. Conguilt current PANTONE Publicastions for accurate color. PANTONES and other Pantons, Inc. trademsrks
are the propsrty of Pantone. inc. Portiona® Fantons, Inc., 2010,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
Virgeena Tech Maroon For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:A0% M100% Y.50% K:15%
For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONE® 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks Is prohibited without the approval of
Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, inc.
Far licensing information, please contact LRG at {616) 395-0676.

www. irademarxoniine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH
FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

] VIRGINIA TECH TARTAN |

Note:

The Tartan was designed in 2008 by Matthew A .C. Newsome of the Scottish Tartans
Museum in Franklin, North Carolina. it is recorded with the Scottish Tartans Authority in
Perthshire, Scotland, in the irternationat Tartan Index as number 7663.

Thread count information is as follows:

Mn12 Ord4 Mn72 Or38 Mnd4 Or12 W6 B8

Mri= maroon; Or= orange; W= white B= bilue

The numbers represent the number of threads, but they are there to indicate a ratio rather

than a prescribed number. In other words, you can increase or decrease the number of
threads to achieve a larger or smaller pattern, so long as the ratio remains the same.

The colors shown on this page have notbeen ted by P nG. for y and may not metch the PANTONE
COL OR ,NFORMA TION Color Standards. Consult current PANTONE Publications mrucunh co!or PANTONE® and cther Pantons, inc. tracdemarks
ure the property of Pantons, ine, Portions® Partone, inc., 2010,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
Viegrtna Tech Maroon For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K18%
N | For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONES 158 C:0% M:65% Y:90% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks Is prohibited without the approval of
Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, inc.
For licensing information, piease contact LRG at (616} 395-0676.

www. trademarxoniine.com
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EXHIBIT 6



wmmmmeee (Original Message «---v---
Subject:IMPORTANT TRADEMARK INFORMATION FROM VIRGINIA TECH

Date:Tue, 15 Mar 2011 11:50:58 -0400

Virginic Tech has requested that LRG forward the following update to their graphic identity program on
their behalf. Please do not reply to this email notice directly. If you have questians or require further
information, please direct off inquiries to Sharon Dudding via email at dyddings@vt.edu

Dear Licensee:

We need to address a couple guestions that have recently been brought to our attention regarding Virginia Tech

trademarks and the use of and TM

The name Hokies, in the plural form, will continue 1o be designated with ® in connection with the sale of the
vast majority of licensed merchandise. The singuiar form, Hokie, should now always be designated with
TM. This change was made several months ago on our artwork on LRG Trademarx Online but we wanted
to bring it to your attention again.

Many of the Virginia Tech trademarks are designated as regisiered ® for a substantial number of different goods
as listed on the registrations. However, there are a small number of ficensed goods that may not be fisted
in the registrations. The correct marking on these goods will therefore be TM depending on the nature of
the goods. The Virginia Tech Licensing Department will make the determination of whether ® or TM
is needed when the product sample and/or artwork are submitted, and you will be informed of any
required changes.

Please remember that you are required to submit ALL artwork for every production run even if the artwork
has been approved in the past. This will eliminate any possible inadvertently improper marking that might arise in
the future,

We look forward to working closely with each of you to make this upcoming school year a record breaking year!

Thanks

Locke White Oppl_exvBT__{z
Director of Licensing Norri<
virginia Tech Licensing & Trademark (0161) WITNESS =2
202C Media Building D~
Blacksburg, VA 24061 DATE: 2~ 2 ff;
(540) 231-3748 KATHERINE P FORD, B

VT HOOS 000055



EXHIBIT 7



[Registration Mumber 2351364 2351365 2370136 2380529 2353306 2389184 2698407
{Registration Date 2573000
5/23/2000 5/23/2000 7/25/2000 Amended $-2-2011 $/30/2000 9/26/2000 3/11/2003
HOKIRS v , VIRGIHIA TECH WWM : WSTITUTE AND STATE Tech.
’ UNIVERSITY
{ Service Mark)

Uass 14: Precious metals, jewelry,

namely, goid pins, goid earrings, tie

tacks; charms and rings, walches and X X X X X X X

clocks

Class 18: Paper articles, namely, writing

paper, folders, note pads, stationery,

loose leaf binders, decals, bumper

|stickers, note books, calendars, post X X x % X X - No Pens X

jcards, posters and pens

Class 18; Leather and imitation leather

goods, namely, brief case type pontfoiio

covers and brief cases, travel bags, X X s NO NO NO NO NO NO

|backpacks, wallets and umbrelias

Class 21: Drinking glasses, mugs, plastic X - No Plates,

cups, insulating sleeve holders for X - No Plates, No No insulated X-No Plates, No

beverage cans, piates and waste paper | X - No Plates X X insulated sleeve holders sleeve hoiders insulated sleeve holders X

baskets for beverage cans for beverage for beverage cans

Class 25 Clothing, oamely, T-shirts,

sport shirts, sweat pants, shorts, sweat

shirts, sweaters, jerseys, pams, ties, X - No Shorts,

haby bibs, caps, hats, shoes, Ackets, X - No Socks X - No Socks No Socks X X - No Socks X X - No Socks

sacks and bath robes

Class 20: Furniture X X

Ons 41; For educational and } services, namely conducting courses of study at the university level in various fields of science and gy at col laiized centers, lab . X

itutes and as distributed besrning broad over the ducational research in the fields of engineering, math, politics, sociology, physics, chemistry, pure and applied science, education,

thumanities and the performing arts; arranging and conducting nﬂllenc canpetmons and sporting events; arranging and cmdualq educational exhibitions and conferences in the finlds of engineering. g

math , politics, sociology, piwsics, chemistry, pure and applied science, &d ities and the perf g arts; nging and conducting {ive perfo and festivals advertised to the general ~q

public which feature arts, music, dance, drama, sports, and athletic competition ;: m

Class 43 For lon and services, namety, p 1 courses of #tthe university level; ed J h; ing and cond athietic , exhibitions in the nature of scientific x% &

shows and schoot fairs, conducting conferences in the field of math, politics, sociology, physics, chermistry and science and distributing course rials in therewith; live performances by a2 musical band and festivals %’ Q

featuring a variely of activities, namely arts, music, dance, drama sports and athietics, P I ]
R, o
3o l- B
BIU =
L4l g“
R
: IV

— ,"}‘
€

VT.HOOS 000411
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Class 18 Leather and imitation leather

gouds, namely, brief £ase type porifolio

coves and brisf cases, traved bags, X X X NO NO NQ
backpacks, waliets and umbrelias

Qass 21: Drinking glasses, mugs, plastic X - No Piates,

cups, insulating sleeve holders for X - No Plates, No No insulated X - No Pistes, N
beverage cans, plates and waste paper | X ~ No Plates X X Insulated sieeve hoiders slesve holders insulated sleeve Mok
baskets for beverage cans for beverage for beverage can
Class 25 Clotheng, namely, T-shirts,

sport shirts, swedt pants, shorts, sweat

shirts, sweaters, jerseys, pants, ties, X - No Sharts,

haby bibs, caps, hats, shoes, jackets, X - No Socks X - No Sacks No Socks X X - No Socks X

s0cks and bath rabes

Class 20: Fusniture x

Class 41: For educationsl and entertainment services, namely condurting courses of study af the university fevel in vanous Gelds of science and technology at colieges, spec
institutes and ax distributed learning braadcast over the internet; educational research in the fiekds of engineering, math, politics, sociolagy, physics, chemistry, pure and &
humanities and the performing ans; arranging and conducling athietic competitions and sporting events; arranging and canducting educational exhibitions and conference
math , politics, sotinlogy, physics, chemistry, pure and applied stience, educatian, humanities and the performing ants; arranging and conducting live performances and fes
Jsublic which Teature arts, muysic, dance, drama, sports, and athletic competition

Class #1: For education and entertainment services, aamely, providing courses of inatruction at the university level; educational research; arranging and conducting athletic
shows and school fairs, conducting conferences in the lield of math, politics, sociplogy, physics, chemistry and science and distributing course materials in connection there
featuting & vaniely of activities, namely arts, music, dance, drama sports and athietics,

100%

PAGE 1 OF 1

5/10/2016
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EXHIBIT 8



VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND STATE UNIVERSITY
Non-Exclusive Trademark Licensing Agreement

This Agreement, made this Date by and between Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State
University (Virginia Tech), 202C Media Building (0161), Blacksburg, Virginia 24061-0161 and
Name, Address, City, State Zip (Licensee).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Virginia Tech is the owner of all rights, title, interest and goodwill in and to certain
designations comprising designs, trade names, trademarks and service marks, including but
not limited to the designations depicted on Attachment A, and other designs, seals and
symbols (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Licensed Marks"), which have come to be
associated with Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University;

WHEREAS, Licensee desires a license to use certain Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State
University Licensed Marks on Licensed Articles listed on Attachment B;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants and agreements
herein contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS
1.1 Agreement shall mean this agreement, together with any addenda or exhibits hereto.

1.2 Licensed Marks shall mean the designs, trademarks, trade names, service marks,
logographics, symbols and any other devices that are associated with Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, which include, but are not limited to the
designations depicted on Attachment A, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

1.3 Licensed Articles shall mean any product or part thereof bearing a Licensed Mark and
listed in the Attachment B, incorporated herein by this reference.

1.4 Included Territory shall mean the United States of America and its territories.

15 Net Sales shall mean the total gross invoice amounts billed to customers, after
deducting any credits for returns actually made as supported by credit memos. In
computing Net Sales, no direct or indirect expenses incurred in licensing,
manufacturing, selling, distributing or advertising (including cooperative and other
advertising and promotion allowances) the Licensed Articles shall be deducted, nor
shall any deduction be made for uncollectible accounts, cash discounts or similar
allowances, provided however, that any taxes actually paid and any universally offered
published discount actually applied may be deducted therefrom. Net Sales resulting
from sales to any party directly or indirectly related to or affiliated with Licensee shall be
computed based on regular selling prices to the trade.

1.6 Retail Sales shall mean the sale of Licensed Articles to the ultimate consumer at retail
outlets (including Virginia Tech outlets), through mail order and/or catalogs.

Aol exvmm_2Y
-

witness /V00n S
{DATE: _ 5 2-/(

AT I LI .
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1.7 Wholesale Sales shall mean the sale of Licensed Articles to any organization other
than the ultimate consumer.

1.8  Premium shall mean any article given free or sold at less than the usual selling price for
the purpose of increasing the sale of, or publicizing any other product or service, or for
any other giveaway or promotional purposes.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

2.1 This Agreement shall be in effect from the date of execution on behalf of Virginia Tech
for a term lasting from the date of execution until June 30. This Agreement shall be
renewed effective each July 1 thereafter for a term of one (1) year by Licensee
submitting an updated certificate of insurance and an advance as set forth in Section
7.4.

GRANTS

3.1 Subject to the terms of the Agreement, Virginia Tech hereby grants Licensee a non-
exclusive license to the Licensed Marks on the Licensed Articles in the Included
Territory.

3.2  No license, express or implied, is granted to Licensee to export Licensed Articles or to
otherwise use Licensed Marks outside the Included Territory, and any such right is
expressly withheld from this Agreement.

3.3 Noright, express or implied, is granted to Licensee to sub-license or otherwise transfer
in whole or in part the right to use the Licensed Marks to third parties, and any such right
is expressly withheld from this Agreement.

3.4 No right, express or implied, is granted to Licensee to allow anyone other than
Licensee to manufacture or otherwise produce Licensed Articles. All Licensed
Articles covered by this Agreement must be manufactured or otherwise produced
directly by Licensee.

3.5 Virginia Tech retains all rights to Licensed Marks except as otherwise granted herein.

PREMIUMS

4.1 No license is granted under this Agreement for the distribution of Licensed Articles as
Premiums, except with the written approval of Virginia Tech.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

51 Licensee agrees to submit, free of cost, samples of Licensed Articles to Virginia Tech

prior to any use, sale or other distribution to the public, and Licensee agrees to withhold
any use, sale or other distribution of Licensed Articles until approved in writing by
Virginia Tech. Said approval by Virginia Tech is applicable to both any product or part

VYT.HOOS 000032
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52

5.3

54

5.5

thereof which constitutes a Licensed Article and the Licensed Mark(s) on such
product or part thereof.

Licensee agrees to maintain such reasonable manufacturing, servicing and quality
standards as may, from time to time, be requested by Virginia Tech.

Licensee shall assure that the Licensed Articles manufactured and sold meet or
exceed the quality and specifications of the samples approved by Virginia Tech.
Licensee agrees to remove from public sale or distribution any previously approved
Licensed Articles to which Virginia Tech rescinds approval.

Licensee agrees that any proposed change to a Licensed Article involving any
Licensed Mark(s) or any alteration in the structure, design or quality of the Licensed
Article, shall be submitted to Virginia Tech for written approval prior to any use, sale or
other distribution to the public, and Licensee agrees to withhold any use, sale or other
distribution of such Licensed Article until approved in writing by Virginia Tech.

Licensee agrees that Virginia Tech’s representatives may from time to time inspect the
manufacturing premises and Licensed Articles of Licensee during all reasonable
hours of operation during the term of this Agreement to assure that Licensed Articles
are being produced in accordance with this Agreement.

TRADEMARK USE AND OWNERSHIP

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Licensee agrees to use the Licensed Marks only in the form and manner and with
appropriate legends as prescribed from time to time by Virginia Tech, and not to use
any other trademark in combination with any of said Licensed Marks without the prior
written approval of Virginia Tech. Licensee agrees it will not alter, modify, dilute or
otherwise misuse the Licensed Marks.

Licensee agrees that upon request, it shall cause to appear on or within each Licensed
Article, by means of a tag, label, imprint, or other appropriate device, such copyright,
trademark or service mark notices as Virginia Tech may from time to time, upon
reasonable notice, designate. Licensee agrees that upon request by Virginia Tech, it
will cause all Licensed Articles to bear an "Official Licensed Product” label in a form
and manner that Virginia Tech may from time to time, upon reasonable notice,
designate, as identified in Attachment C, which is incorporated herein by this reference.

Licensee agrees to submit to Virginia Tech for approval samples of all tags, labels, and
packaging to be used in connection with any Licensed Product and to remove
therefrom or add thereto any element Virginia Tech may from time to time, upon
reasonable notice, designate.

Licensee agrees to submit to Virginia Tech copies of any advertisement or promotional
materials containing Licensed Marks, for Virginia Tech’s approval prior to any use
thereof, and to remove therefrom either any reference to Licensed Marks or any
element which Virginia Tech may from time to time, upon reasonable notice, designate.

VT.HOOS 000033
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6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Licensee acknowledges the ownership of Virginia Tech Trademarks including
Licensed Marks in Virginia Tech, and Licensee agrees that it will do nothing
inconsistent with such ownership, and that use of the Licensed Marks by Licensee
shall inure to the benefit of Virginia Tech. Licensee agrees that it shall not apply for
registration or seek to obtain ownership of any Virginia Tech Trademark in any nation.

Licensee agrees that all artwork, designs, trademark or any reproductions thereof shall,
not withstanding their invention or use by the Licensee, be and remain the property of
Virginia Tech who shall be entitled to use and license to use such artwork and designs,
subject to the provision of this Agreement.

Licensee agrees that it will not state or imply either directly or indirectly that the
Licensee or the Licensee's activities, other than those permitted by this Agreement,
are supported, endorsed, or sponsored by Virginia Tech, and upen direction of Virginia
Tech, shall issue express disclaimers to that effect. Licensee agrees not to use the
name of Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University or any Virginia Tech
Trademarks in its business or affairs except for the use of the Licensed Marks as
authorized herein or as may be incidental to its financial and internal reports. Further,
Licensee agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Virginia Tech for any actions arising
from Licensee's activities.

Licensee agrees it will use the Licensed Marks only in a fashion authorized by this
Agreement and will comply with all appropriate local and national laws in the United
States.

Licensee recognizes the goodwill associated with the Licensed Marks and
acknowledges that said goodwill belongs to Virginia Tech.

ROYALTIES

7.1

Licensee agrees to pay Virginia Tech the following applicable royalties on Net Sales

of Licensed Articles sold by Licensee depending on whether Licensed Articles are sold to
retailers as specified in (a.) below; and/for are sold direct to consumers by Licensee as
specified in (b.) below. Licensed Articles shall be deemed to have been sold when invoiced,
or if not invoiced, then when delivered, shipped, or paid for, whichever is first.

a.

Licensee agrees to pay Virginia Tech a royalty of 10% of total Net Sales of Wholesale
Sales sold by Licensee; and/or

Licensee agrees to pay Virginia Tech a royalty of 5% of total Net Sales of Retail
Sales sold by Licensee.

VT.HOOS 000034



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Royalty payments shall be made in April, July, October, and January for the preceding
calendar quarter's sales, and no later than thirty (30) days following the end of each
quarter. All royalties shall be paid in U.S. dollars, and checks are to be made payable
to:

Licensing Resource Group, Inc

LRG Michigan

442 Century Lane, Suite 100

Holland, Michigan 49423

No royalties shall be charged for sales of Licensed Articles for sales to any department
or organization of Virginia Tech where said purchaser obtains written permission for
royalty waiver from the Office of Licensing and Trademark Administration and submits
the permission with the purchase order. This permission must be retained by the
Licensee as proof of waiver for any future audit. If Licensee charges royalties for such
sales despite the prohibition herein, the provision of paragraph 7.1 herein shall be
applicable to all such sales. The application of paragraph 7.1 herein to such sales shall
not be construed as a wavier of the prohibition set forth in this subparagraph 7.3.

Licensee shall pay Virginia Tech an annual minimum guarantee of ($250) for each
calendar year in which this Agreement is in effect. Upon signing the Agreement,
Licensee shall pay as a non-refundable advance the sum of ($250} which shall be
credited toward royalties to be paid. Per Section 2.1, renewal of this Agreement will be
predicated on the payment by Licensee of an advance of ($250) and receipt by
Virginia Tech of an updated certificate of insurance by July 1 of each year. Failure o
meet these terms shall be cause for cancellation of the Agreement.

In the event the royalty payment is not received by Virginia Tech when due, Licensee
agrees to pay Virginia Tech interest charges at a rate of one and one-half percent (1-
112%) per month. Such interest shall be calculated from the date payment was due until
actually received by Virginia Tech.

Licensee agrees to pay all costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys' fees
incurred by Virginia Tech.

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

8.1

Licensee shall submit to Virginia Tech quarterly reports of its Net Sales of Licensed
Articles. Said reports shall be prepared in a format agreeable to Virginia Tech and
shall itemize all sales of Licensed Products by product category, style, units, dollars
and customer numbers. Reports of sales made in each calendar quarter shall be
submitted within thirty (30) days following the end of each quarter, in April, July, October
and January. Each quarterly report shall be accompanied by a statement from the chief
financial officer of Licensee certifying that the report is correct and complete and
prepared in accordance and in compliance with this Agreement. If no sales or other
use of the Licensed Articles are made during any reporting period, a statement to that
effect shall be provided to Virginia Tech.

VT.HOOS 000035



8.2

8.3

8.4

Licensee shall keep account books, records and duplicates of all invoices to customers
showing the manufacture, sales and other distribution of Licensed Articles. Said
books, records and invoices shall be maintained for a period of at least three (3) years
after the payment of the corresponding royalty and shall be available for inspection and
copying by duly authorized representatives of Virginia Tech during regular business
hours upon reasonable prior notice. Licensee shall cooperate fully with Virginia Tech
in making the inspection.

At least once during each calendar year in which this contract is in effect, and once after
expiration or termination of this contract, Virginia Tech shall be entitled to an
independent audit of Licensee’s account books, records, invoices and other pertinent
data by a certified public accountant or qualified auditor to be designated by Virginia
Tech. The audit shall be limited to the determination of Licensee’s sales of Licensed
Articles, and shall be conducted during normal business hours at Licensee's home
office. The costs of the audit shall be paid by Virginia Tech unless the audit shows that
Licensee understated sales of Licensed Articles by more than ten percent (10%), in
which case the Licensee shall pay all Virginia Tech's costs of the audit.

Licensee shall pay Licensing Resource Group a non-refundable re-instatement fee of
$50.00, in the event the contract is terminated based upon breach by Licensee and
subsequently reinstated.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

9.1

9.2

9.3

Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon ninety
(90) days' written notice to the other party provided however, that such termination shall
not impair or affect any accrued rights of that other party.

Virginia Tech shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement by giving

written notice to Licensee if the Licensee does any of the following:

a. Manufactures, sells, promotes, distributes and/or uses, in any way, any Licensed
Article without having the prior written approval of Virginia Tech as provided for
by the provisions of this Agreement, or continues to manufacture, sell, promote,
distribute and/or use, in any way, any Licensed Article after receipt of notice
from Virginia Tech disapproving or withdrawing approval of same;

b. Files a petition in bankruptcy or is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or makes
an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or an arrangement pursuant to any
bankruptcy law, or if the Licensee discontinues its business or if a receiver is
appointed for the Licensee or for the Licensee's business;

c. Breaches of any conditions or provisions of this Agreement and fails to correct
such breach within ten (I0) days after Virginia Tech, through its Licensing Agent,
Licensing Resource Group, Inc., has given it notice thereof,

Virginia Tech shall have the right to immediately terminate the portion(s) of this
Agreement relating to any Licensed Article in connection with which the Licensee
becomes subject to any voluntary or involuntary order of any governmental agency
involving the recall of any of the Licensed Articles and/or promotional and packaging
material because of safety, health or other hazards or risks to the public.

VT.HOOS 000036
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Licensee acknowledges that money damages alone are inadequate to compensate
Virginia Tech for any breach by Licensee of any provision of this Agreement.
Therefore, in the event of a breach or threatened breach of any provision of this
Agreement by Licensee, Virginia Tech may, in addition to all other remedies,
immediately obtain and enforce injunctive relief prohibiting the breach or compelling
specific performance.

EFFECT OF TERMINATION

10.1

Upon termination of this Agreement, Licensee agrees to immediately discontinue the
manufacture of all Licensed Articles and the use of all Licensed Marks.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the first sentence of this paragraph, Licensee shall
have the privilege of disposing of all approved Licensed Articles within said stock at its
normal wholesale price within three (3) months after said termination or expiration.
However, all such disposition shall be subject to the terms of this Agreement. At the
end of the three (3) month period, the licensee must pay any royalties owed, destroy all
remaining goods, and cease and desist. Legal action will be taken for non-compliance.

10.2 Licensee agrees that all legal rights and goodwill associated with the Virginia Tech
Licensed Marks shall remain the property of Virginia Tech after termination and
Licensee shall make no claim thereto.

INFRINGEMENT

11.1 Licensee agrees to notify Virginia Tech promptly of any known use of Licensed Marks
by others not duly authorized by Virginia Tech. Notification of such infringement shall
include all details known by licensee that would enable Virginia Tech to investigate
such infringement.

INDEMNIFICATION

12.1 Licensee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmiess Virginia Tech, its officers,

employees, and agents from and against any losses and expenses (including attorney's
fees), claims, suits, or other fiability, including product liability, libel and slander resulting
from injury to or death of any person or damage to property arising out of or in any way
connected with the exercise of the license granted by this Agreement, provided such
injuries to persons or damage to property are due to the acts of commissions or
omissions of Licensee, its officers, employees or agents, or the products manufactured
or sold by them.
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INSURANCE

13.1 During the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall maintain in effect insurance for both
bodily injury and property damage liability, including product liability, libel and slander in
per occurrence limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for personal
injury and not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for property damage. The
policy(ies) shall include an endorsement naming Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State
University (Virginia Tech) as an additional insured insofar as this Agreement is
concemed and provide that notice shall be given to Virginia Tech at least thirty (30)
days prior to cancellation or material change in the form of such policy(ies). Licensee
shall furnish Virginia Tech, prior to commencing any performance hereunder, and
annually upon contract renewal, certificates of insurance with the endorsements
required herein. Virginia Tech shall have the right to inspect the original policies of
such insurance.

SEVERABILITY

14.1  Should any provision of this Agreement be held unenforceable or in conflict with the law
of any jurisdiction, then the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected by
such a holding.

MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

15.1 The Parties agree that the Attachments to this Agreement may be modified from time
to time in a writing signed by both Parties for the purpose of adding or deleting items
therefrom.

15.2 It is agreed that no waiver by either Party hereto of any breach or default of any of the
provisions herein set forth shall be deemed a waiver as to any subsequent and/or
similar breach or defauit.

NEGATION OF AGENCY

16.1 Licensee is an independent contractor. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to
create an agency, joint venture, franchise or partnership relationship between the
Parties, and neither Party shall so hold itself out. Licensee shall have no right to

obligate or bind Virginia Tech in any manner whatsoever, and nothing contained in this
Agreement shall give or is intended to give any right of any kind to third persons.

LICENSE RESTRICTIONS

17.1 It is agreed that the rights and privileges granted to Licensee are each and all expressly
conditioned upon the faithful performance on the part of Licensee of every requirement
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herein contained, and that each of such conditions and requirements may be and the
same are specific license restrictions.

LIMITED WARRANTY
18.1 Virginia Tech warrants it has the lawful capacity to execute this Agreement.

18.2 Virginia Tech makes no Warranty, express or implied, that Licensed Articles will be
commercially successful.

18.3 Virginia Tech makes no Representations or Warranties with respect to the products
manufactured or sold by Licensee and any liability arising out of the sale of Licensed
Articles sold or use of the Licensed Marks hereunder.

18.4 Licensee warrants that the products manufactured or sold by Licensee under this
Agreement will be suitable for the purpose for which they are intended to be used.

ASSIGNABILITY

19.1 This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Virginia Tech, its successors and assigns,
but will be personal to Licensee and shall be assignable by Licensee only with the prior
written consent of Virginia Tech.

GOVERNING LAW

20.1 This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and all disputes hereunder shall
be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Parties hereto consent
to the jurisdiction of the court of competent jurisdiction, federal or state, situated in the
Commonwealth of Virginia for the bringing of any and all actions hereunder.

DISCRIMINATION

21.1 Both Parties agree not to discriminate against any individual or company on the basis of
race, creed, color, national origin, age or sex.

SURVIVAL OF RIGHTS

221 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, such obligations which
remain executory after expiration of the term of this Agreement shall remain in full force

and effect until discharged by performance and such rights as pertain thereto shall
remain in force until their expiration.

DISCLOSURE OF MANUFACTURING COMPANIES
23.1 Virginia Tech Licensees are required to disclose the names of all manufacturing

companies utilized by Licensee and their addresses, phone numbers, and contact
person. This includes all subcontractors.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

24.1 Licensees are asked to take any internal and external action needed to ensure
compliance with the Virginia Tech Licensee Code of Conduct, attached hereto as
exhibit A,

HEADINGS

25.1 The headings herein are for reference purposes only and not constitute a part hereof or
be deemed to limit or expand the scope of any provision of this Agreement.

NOTICE AND PAYMENTS

26.1  Any notice required by this Agreement shall be deemed to have been properly received
when delivered in person or when mailed by registered first class mail return receipt
requested to the address as given herein, or such addresses as may be designated
from time to time during the term of this Agreement.

COMPLETE AGREEMENT

27.1 It is understood and agreed between the Parties that this Agreement constitutes the
entire agreement between them, both oral and written, and that all prior agreements or
representations respecting the subject matter hereof whether written or oral, expressed
or implied, are superseded and are null and void and of no effect.

27.2 All attachments to this Agreement are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set
forth in this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties here have caused this Agreement to be executed in
duplicate by their duly authorized representatives and to become effective as of the day and
year first above written.

Licensee Licensor

Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State

Company Name University
M. Dwight Shelton, Jr.
Printed Name Printed Name
Vice President for Finance and
Title Chief Financial Officer
Title
Signature Signature
Date Date
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Attachment A

Trademarks of Virginia Tech

IMPORTANT NOTE: Many of the following Virginia Tech trademarks are designated as registered ®,
because Virginia Tech holds a number of registrations of its marks in connection with the sale of a
broad range of goods as listed on those registrations. However, there are some licensed goods that
may not be listed in the registrations. The correct marking on these goods might therefore be TM
depending on the nature of the merchandise. The Virginia Tech Licensing Department will make that
determination when the product sample andfor artwork are submitted. Some of the Virginia Tech
trademarks are not registered and should be marked with TM as noted below.

irginiaTech.

Invent the Future

WVirginiaTech.  @VirginiaTech.

Invent the Future

irginia Tech | E@V"Egm 3

fmf@n! the

M VirginiaTech.

Tha cnlors showss an ihia pEge have nol baen avaiuated by Panton, InG. for aseuracy. snd mey pol match the PANTONE
Corar Standards. Consult curmant PANTONE Publicriona for sccurte color PANTONES ¥ng other Pantone, e, redemarnks
are tha property of Famtone, inc. Portinn el Parrons, ing., 211

COLOR INFORMATION

University Colors Pantone ® Colors Process Colors

Virgimia Te von For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PanTOne® 208 C:40% M:100% Y:50% K:15%

For Virginia Tech Orange, use PanTOne® 158 C:0% M:65% Y:20% K:0%

Reproduction of any logos or wordmarks is prohiblted without the
approval of Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resource Group, Inc, For
licensing information, please contact LRG at (616} 385-0876.

VT.HOOS 000041
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VIRGINIA TECH
 FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

mt&mmﬁt page haye not Brarcavalugtsd by Parkone, Ine. for psRuUrasy Ao Mmay 104 maken the PANTONE

COLOR INFORIATION ot S, Consuh Sirant PANTONS Pubt Pubbcatons for sccurals ¢ofer FANTONER and ks Pankane, . rademuks

mmm@ar«m e, Pammme e

UMIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONED 208 CAl MO YL50% KASH
For Virginia Tech Orange, use PANTONES 158 C:0% MBH Yo% KO%

Rsproduction of 2ny ogus of wordmarks I8 protiblied without the approval of
Wrginga Teeh and the Licensing Resource Group, Ine,
For Hieansing Information, please contact LRG o (816) 39540678,

www.irademarvonine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH
" FULL-COLOR REPRESENTATIONS

Virginia Pelytechnic Institute and State University® invent the Future®
Virginia Tech®& Hokie™
Hokies® HokieBird™

BN ' I T o Sroon U gt Faga TG, eakes aky Pt T ot ey mmm;n;&ﬁw}}:@i
COLOR INFORMATION s ihe geoperty of Pantorse, ine. Pordae s Pamon, e, 011,

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONES 208 C40% MAGLY Y50 Ki1B%
For Virginia Tech Grange, use PANTONED 158 G0 MSSK YO0 KO0%

Reproduction of any fogos of wordimarks is prohibited without the approval of
Virginka Tach and tha Licensing Resoures Group, ine.
For Hicensing infwmation, please contact LRG at {B16] 3950676,

waw Sademanvonirecom

VT.HOOS 000044
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VIRGINI

‘ HOKIE VINTAGE MARKS l

AN

Restriction:
Vintage marks may nof be used in conjunction with current Virginia Tech
marks or verbiage other than the name “Virginia Tech”.

COrE ShOWE SNt pRge have Ted B en SeRiate T By Pantorie, Ing. ForaCouracy and may 1o matsh the RAMTONE

COLOR INFORMATION ‘ir:?wm Motstla. Condul surrant PANTORE PuBKcations fur aecinate colot PANTONES wid athar Partene. (g, Iademara

sre the proparty of Pantens, Inc. Fadisnsd Pantone, ine. 3041

UNIVERSITY COLORS PANTONER COLORS PROCESS COLORS
For Virginia Tech Maroon, use PANTONED 208 CHADYN MDY YO0% Koy
| For Virginla Tech Crange, use PANTONER 158 0% Mel% Yalh Koy

Reprotuction of any logos of wordmarks i prohibled withow! e spproval of
Virginia Tech and the Licensing Resoirce Growp, Ing.
Fur Hcensing Information, please contact LRG af (816] 3550876,

www. trademanconiine.com
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VIRGINIA TECH
' FULL-COLO

i VIRGINIA TECH TARTAN |

Note:

Tre Tertan was designed in 2008 by Matthew A C. Newsome of the Scottish Tartans
Museum in Franklin, North Carolina. it is recorded with the Scotfish Tartans Authority in
Perthshire, Scotiend, in the internationat Tartan index a8 number 7663

Thread count information is as follows:

Mn12 Ord Mn72 Crag Mnd Or12 W8S B&

Mn= maroon, Or= orange. W= white B= biue

The numbers represent the number of threads, but they are there to indicate a ratio rather

than a prascribed number in other words, you can increase or decrease the number of
threads to achieve a larger or stnaller pattern, so long as the ratio remains the same.

N ) - N Thw Colers sho SF IR Page Sate Tt bein syl by Ine Tor sccuTacy anl ey noh mumech thw PARTONE
¢ i 4 Rk LN £H Qﬂ‘ ¥ ‘&(m * oF. ardt otler Partens 160 Pasemirk:
COLOR INFORMATION oot g A L LN *

PANTONE® COLORS PROCESS COLORS
For Virpinia Tech Maroon, use PANTONE® 208 C40% MII0DK Y BON Kii8%
- C:I0% ME5% Y:80% KI0%

Reproduction of any logos of wordmarks is prohibited withowt the approval of
Virginda Tech and the Licensing Resuwce Grolp, Ine.
For ticensing information, please coniact LRG of {818) M3-0678.

www. rademarxoniine.com
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Attachment B

Licensed Articles (All products to be licensed must be listed here.)

VT HOOS 000047
17



Attachment C

in 1989, five institutions that managed their licensing programs independent of an agent
worked together to create the Collegiate Licensed Product labeling program. This label was
designed to help identify products as officially licensed, and was used not only by
independently-managed colleges and universities nationwide, but by institutions whose
licensing programs were managed by the Licensing Resource Group, Inc.

Over the past several months, LRG, its university partners, and numerous independently-
managed university licensing programs determined a need to increase the level of security
that the CLP label provided not only to its members, but to the licensees who diligently
adhere to the terms and conditions of all collegiate licensing programs that use this [abel. To
help manage this program, the member institutions and LRG formed the Collegiate Licensed
Properties Association (CLPA) and are pleased to announce the CLPA Authentication
Program,

The CLPA Authentication Program is designed to protect legitimate licensees from the
onslaught of unlicensed and counterfeit products found on the market today. We know you
have made a significant investment in your business and the production and sale of collegiate
licensed merchandise, and we want to be sure that your investment is protected from those
who have riot made the same commitment.

The CLPA Authentication Program has been created in cooperation with OpSec Security,
Inc. OpSec is the world’s leading provider of anti-counterfeiting and brand protection
management programs, and counts among its clients Major League Baseball, the National
Football League and the National Basketball Association. More information about OpSec can
be found on their website at www.opsecsecurity.com.

To help answer questions regarding the ordering and application of labels, please go to
http:/Awww.lrqusa.com/clp_label info.php. Should you have additional questions that have not
been addressed, please contact Jack Landrigan at 616.395.08768, ext. 111 or
jack@irgusa.com; Lisa Tomlinson at 616.395.0676, ext. 108 or lisa@lrgusa.com or OpSec
Security Jennifer Pollock jpollock@gopsecsecurity.com at 717-293-4110 ext. 1111 or Faith
Smith fsmith@ opsecsecurity.com or clpa@opsecsecurity.com.
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Dudding, Sharon

From: Dudding, Sharon

Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2011 9:03 AM
To: 'Lorraine Watts'

Ce: White, Locke

Subject: RE: Hokie

Lorraine,

There are cerfain classifications on categories of products we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With
products that do not fall info those categories a TM should be used. Hokie singular always will geta TM. Hokies plural depending
on the product will get a ® or a TM. When you submit your artwork and/or samples you will be told which one you should use.
Please just follow our instructions when you submit on trademarx.

Hope this helps.

Thanks,

Sharon

Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Manager

202C Media Building 0161
Biacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878

s P S N A g P s P TN Bt i ol St S P s P g ot O P o St

From: Lorraine Watts [mailto:iorraine@dhmbkids.com)
Sent: Wednesday, March 16, 2011 9:01 AM

To: Dudding, Sharon

Subject: Hokie

Regarding the Virginia Tech trademark, we only use the standing Hokie on our licensed products with the R. Please let me
know if this is not correct.
Thank you.

Larraine Watts

Dolly Hosiery Mill, inc.
Dba DHM Kids
(828-874-2912)

550 EXHIBIT 26
witNess _Noroieg,

DATE: G- 2-/b
KATHERINE P FORD, RPR
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EXHIBIT 9B



Duvdding. Sharon — — —

From: Karla Kohimann <kkohlmann@4imprint.com>
Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2011 8:54 AM

To: Dudding, Sharon

Subject: RE: Virginia Tech artwork

Thank you Sharon | am sorry for our customer service representative misunderstanding the guidelines and will sit down and talk
with them.

Karla

From: Dudding, Sharon [mailto:duddings@vt.edu]
Sent: Thursday, April 21, 2011 7:44 AM

To: Dudding, Sharon

Cc: Karla Kohlmann

Subject: Virginia Tech artwork

Please correct artwork. Hokies needs to have a TM, the Hokie Bird needs to have a TM, and Virginia Tech needs to have a

™ There are certain categories of products that we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With products that
do not fall into those categories a TM should be used. When you submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be told if a change is
needed.

Please just follow our instructions when you submit on Trademarx.

There was an emall that went out by LRG around March 15, 2011

Virginia Tech has requested that LRG forward the following update to their graphic identity program on their
behalf. Please do not reply to this email notice directly.

Dear Licensee:

We need to address a couple questions that have recently been brought to our attention regarding Virginia Tech trademarks and
the use of ¢ and ™.

1. The name Hokies, in the plural form, will continue to be designated with ® in connection with the sale of the vast majority
of licensed merchandise. The singular form, Hokie, should now always be designated with TM. This change was made
several months ago on our arfwork on LRG Trademarx Online but we wanted to bring it to your attention again.

Many of the Virginia Tech trademarks are designated as registered ® for a substantial number of different goods as listec
on the registrations. However, there are a small number of licensed goods that may not be listed in the registrations. Th
correct marking aon these goods will therefore be TM depending on the nature of the goods. The Virginia Tech
Licensing Department will make the determination of whether ® or TM is needed when the product sample and/c
artwork are submitted, and you will be informed of any required changes.

e

Please remember that you are required to submit ALL artwork for every production run even if the artwork has been
approved in the past. This will eliminate any possible inadvertently improper marking that might arise in the future.

Topr_exniein_ Q[

wiTNEss NOrris

; ATE: 2 (21
Sharon Dudding P KATHERUNE P FORD, RPR J
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Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech
202C Media Building 0161
Biacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878

---0riginal Message--—

From: noreply@trademarxoniine.com [mailto:noreply@trademarxoniine.com)
Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2011 4:20 PM

To: Dudding, Sharon

Cc: kkohimann@d4imprint.com

Subject: New comment posted

A new comment has been posted on Design Number 58123391 by 4imprint, Inc.;

Resubmitting again but there is a tm after Virginia tech. If you need the hokie logo tm instead of circle r please refer to logo. This has been approved in the
past on orders,

Click the link below to view the submission.
hitp:/icollege trademarxoniine com/submissionsishow/576628
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Dgg{ding, Sharon

From: Dudding, Sharon

Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2011 943 AM

To: DecWallCreAnt@aol.com’

Subject: RE: Virginia Tech Licensing/Information needed

There are certain categories of products that we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With products that do
not fall into those categories a TM should be used. When you submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be told if a change is
needed.

Your Ottoman, Table Storage Unit will need to have a TM.

Please let me know if you have any other questions.

Thank you,

Sharon

Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech
202C Media Building 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878

s s P o Pt i P Tt g Pt O g Pt ot Pl e P s S PNl o P Pt o Pt

From: DecWallCreArt@aol.com [maitto: DecWallCreArt@aol.com]
Sent; Tuesday, May 03, 2011 9:40 AM

To: Dudding, Sharon

Subject: Re: Virginia Tech Licensing/Information needed

Sharon, I'm ordering the Mascot "HOKIE". Will ali the future marks be TM, or is this just for the sampie for the Licensing review.

Thank You

Elizabeth Berryman-Kent

Decorative Walls & Creative Arts LLC

1518 Jacquelin Street A20). EXHIBIT Ei ;
Richmond, Virginia 23220 WITNESS /Vorris

DATE: 5 -—2-/b
KATHERINE P FORD, RER

in a message dated 5/3/2011 8:15:06 A.M. Eastern Daylight Time, duddings@vt.edu writes:

Any Virginia Tech marks that you have should have a TM on them instead of ® for your product.

o P o T Vo S Tl P s PO o s O T o, Nt B st Wy g S o

VT.HOOS 000085



Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech
202C Media Building 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748

Fax-540-231-3878

From: DecWallCreArt@aol.com [maiito: DecWallCreArt@aol.com]
Sent: Monday, May 02, 2011 4:13 PM

To: Dudding, Sharon )

Subject: Re: Virginia Tech Licensing/Information needed

Sharon, The Virginia Tech ottoman that I'm building will be constructed without the MARK?

thank you

Elizabeth Berryman-Kent
Decorative Walls & Creative Arts LLC
1518 Jacquelin Street

Richmond, Virginia 23220

in a message dated 4/7/2011 10:22:01 A M. Eastern Daylight Time, duddings@vt edu writes
Ms. Kent

{ received your information however the insurance cerlificate is incorrect. Virginia Tech needs lo be listed as certificate holder and
additional insured. There needs 1o be some fype of statement saying certificate holder is listed as additional insured.

Please update and email or fax 540-231-3878 an update certificate.

Thank you,
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Sharon

I s o s ot ot o P s I s PO 3 it 3 P O St o Pt P NP 5 o o

Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech
202C Media Building 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748

Fax-540-231-3878
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Dudding, Sharon

- -
From: Stacy Zeliner <szeliner@collegeconcepts.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 01, 2011 3:01 PM
To: Dudding, Sharon
Subject: RE: Virginia Tech artwork

Sharon,
Thank you for your reply. | will forward to our art department so that they are aware of these TM and ® requirements.

Stacy

From: Dudding, Sharon [mailto:duddings@vt.edu]
Sent: Wedn&sday,ﬁ]une 01, 2011 2:46 PM

To: 'szeliner@co légeconcepts com'

Cci sholmes@collegeconcepts com'

Subject: Virginia Tech artwork

Stacy,

There are certain categories of products that we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With products that do
not fall into those categories a TM should be used. When you submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be told if a change is
needed. No new artwork page will be added.

There was an email sent out around March 15, 16, 2011,

Virginia Tech has requested that LRG forward the following update to their graphic identity program on their beholf.
Dear Licensee:

We need to address a couple questions that have recently been brought to our attention regarding Virginia Tech trademarks and
&
the use of and TM.
1. The name Hokies, in the plural form, will continue to be designated with ® in connection with the sale of the vast majority

of licensed merchandise. The singular form, Hokie, should now always be designated with TM. This change was made
several months ago on our artwork on LRG Trademarx Online but we wanted to bring it to your attention again.

2. Many of the Virginia Tech trademarks are designated as registered ® for a substantial number of different goods as listed
on the reg;stratzons However there are a small number of hcensed goods that may not be listed i in the registrations. Thi
Licens:né bépartment will make the determination of whether ® or TM is needed when the product sample and/o
artwork are submitted, and you will be informed of any required changes.

Please remember that you are required fo submit ALL artwork for every production run even if the artwork has been
approved in the past. This will eliminate any possible inadvertently improper marking that might arise in the future.

e e Aol exwer_1L)
St‘lar:()xj\ Dudding WITNESS Norig
Virginia Tech —

Licensing Support Tech DATE: D-12-1b
202C Medja Building 0161 KATHERINE P FORD, RPR
Blacksburg, VA 24061
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Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878
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EXHIBIT 9E



Dudding, Sharon —

From: Dudding, Sharon

Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2011 3:22 PM
To: debra@treasures-trinkets.com
Subject: Virginia Tech artwork

Debra

There are certain categories of products that we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With products that do not fafl into those categories
a TM should be uséd. In this case is a bracelet.
When you submiit your-artwork on Trademarx you will be told if a change is needed.

There was an email that went out from LRG around March 15% or 167,
Virginia Tech has requested that LRG forward the following update to their graphic identity program on their beholf.
Dear Licensee:

We need to address a couple questions that have recently been brought to our attention regarding Virginia Tech tfrademarks and
®

the use of and TM.

1. The name Hokies, in the plural form, will continue to be designated with ® in connection with the sale of the vast majority
of licensed merchandlse The smgular form, Hokie, should.now always be desxgnated with TM. This change was made
several months ago on our artwork on LRG Trademarx Online but we wanted to bnng it to your attention again.

2. Many of the ergrma Tech trademarks are designated as registered ® for a substantial number of different goods as listed
on the reg:strattons However, there are a small number of licensed goods that may not be listed in- the regtstratxons The
correct marking on these goods will therefore be TM dependmg on-the nature of the goods The V:rg:ma Tech
Licensing Department will make the determinatlon of whether ® or TM i$ needed when the product sample and/or
artwork are submitted, and you will be informed of any required changes.

Please remember that you are required to submit ALL artwork for every production run even if the artwork has been
approved in the past. This will eliminate any possibie inadvertently improper marking that might arise in the future.

Sharon Dudding

Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech
202C Media Building 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748
Fax-540-231-3878

ool Exven_Z <
-.Qriginal Message-— WITNESS N O rpis
From: noreply@trademarxonline.com [mailto:noreply@trademarxontine.com) -
Sent: Wednesday, June 08, 2011 3:15 PM DATE: O 12-1
To: Dudding, Sharon KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

Ce: debra@treasures-trinkets.com
Subject: New commient posted

A new comment has been posted on Design Number 4733 by Treasures & Trinkets, inc.:
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May 1 ask why this product needs the TM instead of the ®? I've looked at the logo in the .eps file posted here and it has the circle R. Other products I've seen
out in the markelplace, such as watches, usb sticks, t-shirts, hats, etc. all have the circle R,

Click the link below to view the submission.
htip/lcollege. frademarxonline.com/submissions/show/538419
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Dudding, Sharon

. N ISR L
From: Dudding, Sharon
Sent: Thursday, June 09, 2011 3:30 PM
To: ‘art@elevenwest.com’
Subject: Virginia Tech artwork

Jessie,

There are certain categories of products that we are registered for and ® should be used with those goods. With products that do
not fall into those categories 2 TM should be used. When you submit your artwork on Trademarx you will be fold if a change is
needed

There was an emajl sent out around March 15, 16, 2011,

Virginia Tech has requested that LRG forward the following update to their graphic identity program on their behalf.
Dear Licensee:

We need to address a couple questions that have recently been brought to our attention regarding Virginia Tech trademarks and
B
theuseof andTM.

1. The name Hokies, in the plural form, will continue to be designated with ® in connection with the sale of the vast majority
of licensed merchandise. The singular form, Hokie, shouid now always be designated with TM. This change was made
several months ago on our artwork on LRG Trademarx Online but we wanted to bring it to your aftention again.

Many of the Virginia Tech trademarks are designated as registered ® for a substantial number of different goods as fisted
on the registrations. However, there are a small number of licensed goods that may not be listed in the registrations. The
correct marking on these goods will therefore be TM depending on the nature of the goods. The Virginia Tech
Licensing Department will make the determination of whether ® or TM is needed when the product sample and/oi
artwork are submitted, and you will be informed of any required changes.

o

Piease remember that you are required to submit ALL artwork for every production run even if the artwork has been
approved in the past. This will efiminate any possible inadvertently improper marking that might arise in the future.

Sharon Duddlng

Virginia Tech

Licensing Support Tech

202C Media Building 0161
Blacksburg, VA 24061
Ph-540-231-3748 YA ~
Fax-540-231-3878 s EXHBIT q

v s e e s o e o o s o i s P o WITNESS Nonres

DATE: S-121~1b
KATHERINE P FORD, RER
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Dudding, Sharon -

From: shollarl @cox.net

Sent: Friday, June 17, 2011 12:01 PM

To: White, Locke

Cc: Dudding, Sharon

Subject: RE: Product/Artwork Approval Question
Thanks Locke,

| think | have a basis now for at least giving it an educated guess whether to go with TM or R, with of course your
office having the final say.

thanks again,

steve

--— "White wrote:
> Steve,
>

> See my answers below in red.

>

> Locke White

> Director of Licensing

> Virginia Tech Licensing & Trademark (0161) 202C Media Building
> Blacksburg, VA 24061

> (540) 231-3748

>

> [cid:image001.jpg@01CC2CDE.4D869810]
> P

> From: Steve Hollar [mailto:shollar1@cox.net]
> Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2011 8:33 PM

> To: White, Locke

> Cc: Dudding, Sharon

> Subject: Product/Artwork Approval Question

> 4,00 EXHIBT_4. &
> Hi Locke, Sharon, ‘ wiTNESS _/NDI 05

g pate: 5 —12-1b
> And yes, | have a few more questions. KATHERINE P FORD, RPR

>
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> | submitted earlier this week through TradeMarx a corian cutting board with VT inlays and the TM mark for
artwork approval. You approved and requested a product sample, of which I'll package up a sample this
weekend.

>

> Based on our discussion in March where you approved a corian napkin holder and corian lazy susan with a
note to use the TM instead of the Registered mark on those products, | assumed (apparently correctly) that a TM
would be required on the corian cutting board.

>

> My products generally fall in 2 material categories, glassware and

> corian products. | understand that each product needs to have its own

> TM/R decision, but as a “general” rule for me to initially produce a

> product for approval;
>

>

> The determination as to whether a product needs a ® or a TM is based on what the product is, and not what it
is made of. For instance “Hokies” is registered for a number of different categories of products like precious
metals, paper articles; and clothing. Under each major category there is a specific list of products. For instance,
under the category of clothing there are t-shirts, sport shirts, sweat pants, and others. If a product is on the list,
like t-shirts, then it would get a ®. If however, the product was socks, it would get the TM because socks is not
listed.

>

> 1) s this assumption correct?

>

> *

> glassware should have the R on the VT logo The VT trademark is

> registered for drinking glasses, mugs, plastic cups, and more, so there is a good likelihood that it would get an
®. To be better safe than sorry however it is always best to check with us first before producing the item.

>

> * corian products should have the TM on the VT logo

> See answer above.

> 2} If I'had submitted the cutting board as a wood product, would the VT have the TM or R mark? Just trying t
get a handle on whether the decision is based on 1) what the product is, or 2) what the product is made from

b

> Again, see answer above.
>
> 3) Does Hokies which normally has the R mark, also have the TMissue? Another words, if 'm instructed to
use the TM for the VT logo on a particular product, | can assume that if | use-the Hokies phrase on that product,
should also use the TM with Hokies on that product?

- > The determination of ® or TM for Hokies is again made case by case for each product. HOWEVER, the name
Hokie (singular) will ALWAYS get the TM no matter what the product is.
>

> Hopefully 1 did not confuse you more. If you ever have a question, just shoot us an email and we will give you
an answer usually within 24 hours.

2
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>

> Locke
>

> thanks,
>

> Steve
>
> Steve Hollar

> Game Day Designs
>

v V V V
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mstitution Decision:  Approved with Changes - 09/24/2012 Drawing Tosts Art Baard Zoom: Too Muiti-Page File

b

Ligensee:  Wholesaie SCreen Printing

[09/24/32 10:48:00 AM] [VIRGIT] |

For the word Hokie, please replace the
segister-mark with o THM

{09/24/12 7:58:00 AM] [VIRGIT]

other tnan TH an Hokie, ak?

109721712 11:47:00 AM] [tmeginn]
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Institution Becision:  Approved with Changes - (8/24/2012

: Tags:
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it et SR R

i
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[09/24/12 10:47:00 AM] [VIRGIT]
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Institubion Decsion:  Approved with Changes - 08/23/2012
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Multi-Page File
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insttutinn Decision:  Approved with Chaages - 05/17/2013

1 d.lh‘,n :
 Aafo  Addrlisfo  Comments  AG-DOCRe..

Lcensen: W Soffe i

[05/17/13 3:48:00 BM] [VIRGIT]

For the word "Hoxe™ onty please replace the
registar mark with s TM

Qws&m Tooks:

At Boacd Zoom Yool

Mutti-Page File

4

VT.HOOS 000007



o e
- % OPAGE 1

Institanion Gecision:  Disapproved ~ 07/25/2013

Comments 2 ba&on?: ;

i

[07/29/13 8:57:00 AM] [VIRGIT]
F i wond “Hokie” o TH needs to be used,
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OLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

All advertising should reflect the established Virginia Tech graphic identity and promote key
institutional messages in ways that are consistent across campuses, departments, and units.
This will ensure that the university and its campuses and units are presented to the public in a
consistent, coherent manner, and that university resources are expended efficiently and
effectively.

The areas of primary concern Marketing and Publications may review with units are:

brand style

graphic design
copywriting

media plan efficiency

» & 5 »

If issues are identified, Marketing and Publications will provide frec consulting services as
needed to address these issues (see Requests for Assistance below).

Units requesting advertising consultation or review should contact the brand marketing manager
at branding @vt.edu or 540-231-3899.

Marketing and Publications provides its consulting services at no cost.
Visitor Center

Marketing and Publications is responsible for managing and staffing the university’s Visitor
Center. The unit maintains supplies of a variety of publications, including a university visitor
guide.

The Visitor Center issues free visitor parking passes. The center is open 7:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.
Monday-Friday. Beginning in September 2011, the center will expand its hours to inclade 8 a.m.
to 2:30 p.m. Saturdays, and 1 p.m. to 5 p.m. Sundays. The center is not open weekdays when the
university is closed.

Licensing and Trademark Administration

ai—"

Licensing and Trademark Administration’s (Licensing) mission is to ensure that the image and
reputation of Virginia Tech is upheld through effective management and protection of the
university's trademarks. Licensing policies apply only to products authorized for resale.

Licensing strives to communicate to all organizations, departments, populations, and individuals
affiliated or familiar with Virginia Tech the purpose and goals of the licensing program.
Licensing Administration will work with other university departments and associations to ensure
that all promotional activities involving the use of licensed products are administered in
accordance with established licensing policies and procedures.
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UNIVERSITY RELATIONS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

Licensing seeks to establish relationships with product manufacturers, retailers, and the general
public to promote the benefits of producing, selling, and buying officially licensed products.
Procedures for becoming a licensee can be found on the university’s website at

http://www unirel. vi.edu/licensing/.

University Legal Counsel assists Licensing in administering various aspects of the licensing
program, including policy development, contract administration, and license enforcement.

Guidelines and Procedures
U.S. Trademark Laws and Requirements Overview

The administrative requirements and procedures outlined in this section should be followed in
order to achieve effective use and protection of all Virginia Tech trademarks. Non-compliance
with the requirements in this section may result in trademark neglect, misuse, abandonment, or
infringement.

Licensing adheres to all requirements set forth in The Lanham Act of 1946. This legislation
governs trademark use and enforcement at the federal level by reducing unfair competition
amongst businesses and protecting consumers from imitation products and services.

Trademark Creation and Design

Any department, organization, or individual associated with Virginia Tech may develop a design
or phrase to be trademarked, usually at the request of the university president or other senior
administrative official. The design will be evaluated for style, originality, and ability to portray a
positive image.

The following administrative areas must review any trademark that will be registered and usad
by Virginia Tech:

¢ Licensing and Trademark Administration

¢ Legal Counsel

o the associate vice president of university relations
¢ the president of Virginia Tech

The president of Virginia Tech must give formal approval before any trademark is formally
recognized and implemented.

Registration of a trademark will be coordinated by Licensing, in consultation with Legal counsel.

VT.HOGS 000092



POLICIES PROCEDURES

Use of Virginia Tech’s Trademarks
General

University departments, colleges, organizations, and vendors must obtain written permission
from Licensing to nse Virginia Tech marks on any products. This includes, but is not limited to,
pens, notebooks, caps, shirts, jackets, glassware, pins, and key rings. Licensing will submit an
approval letter to the vendor printing the item. The letter will serve as the university’s approval
to produce Virginia Tech marks and will inform the vendor of royalty requirements. Only
licensed vendors may produce items bearing university trademarks.

The university has registered the following marks:
Virginia Tech®
Hokies®

Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University®

Invent the Future®
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UNIVERSITY RELATIONS POLICIES PROCEDURES

The trademarked HokieBird® and VT® are limited to athletic and informal usage and must not
be used for academic applications, academic products, or university websites.

The university shield and shield logo both have a protected arca. No lines, words, or artwork
may overlap or intersect this mark, and no changes may be made to the design.

Most, but not all, uses of these marks must bear the ® registered mark. Licensing must state in
its approval of each use of the mark whether the ® for registered mark or the " trademark
symbol should be used.

The university also uses the following marks, which must always bear the * trademark symbol:

Hokie™

T VirginiaTech.

'
L
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_POLICTES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

The following marks are not aceeptable in referring to the university, either graphically or
editorially:

VPI

Va (or VA) Tech

Virginia Polytechnic Institute
Virginia Tech University

Virginia Tech marks may not be used in conjunction with other trademarks or registered marks
without written permission from the owner of the mark.

Licensing will provide assistance in determining proprietary rights (for example, using Virginia
Tech with the Nike slogan “Just Do It,” or using VT with U.Va.) and will answer questions about
the status of a mark.

Virginia Tech marks may not be used in conjunction with references to alcohol or drugs. Nor
will any use of university trademarks that is judged to be in poor taste be allowed.

The official Virginia Tech colors are maroon (PMS 208) and orange (PMS 158).
Questions about the status of a mark for use with products meant for resale should be referred to
Licensing. All other questions about use of university marks should be directed to

brandingt@vi.edu or 540-231-3899.

Students and Departments

Students wanting to produce T-shirts and other commercial-type items must submit designs to
Licensing for written approval through a licensed vendor or must email the artwork to Licensing.

Departments should adhere to the following guidelines for purchasing items bearing Virginia
Tech trademarks with either HokieMart orders or American Express:

¢ The design being purchased must be submitted to Licensing for approval before the order
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USVERSITY RELATIONS POLICIES AND SROCEDURES MANUAL

is placed (or requisition sent to Purchasing).

¢ The name of the vendor producing the order should be submitted to Licensing with the
design.

¢ The vendor must be licensed with the university or must sign a one-time limited
agreement. If the vendor selected is not licensed, the licensing director will determine
whether the vendor may be used.

If the design is approved, Licensing will write an approval allowing the vendor to produce the
design and giving the vendor royalty information including whether or not royalties are waived.
A copy of the approval should be attached to the requisition package and submitted to
Purchasing with the HokieMart order.

Royalties are usually waived for items produced exclusively for a university affiliated club,
organization, or department when the design bears the name of the group and the products are
being sold 1o the members at cost. Items bearing university trademarks that are being sold as
fundraisers by Registered Student Organizations (RSO) are usually not subject to standard
royalty rates. The designs must be submitted for approval by Licensing, who will determine on a
case-by-case basis whether royalties apply.

Becoming a Licensee

Licensing protects and controls the use of Virginia Tech’s name, nicknames, and other
identifying marks for purposes of resale. Companies and individuals wishing to use these marks
are required to enter into a nonexclusive trademark license agreement with the university. The
process consists of four phases:

s Phase I: The application is completed by the prospective licensee and returned with a
$50.00 administrative fee, generic samples of the products to be licensed, and product
specification sheets of each item. The application will be reviewed, and if approved, the
applicant enters Phase 1. If the application is disapproved, samples will be returned.

¢ Phase II: A nonexclusive licensing agreement is forwarded to the applicant. The
applicant then signs the agreement and returns it to Virginia Tech with a $250.00 advance
royalty guarantee and a certificate of insurance that meets all requirements listed in
section 13.1 of the contract.

¢ Phase III: A fully executed copy of the agreement is returned to the applicant. The
applicant also receives artwork, product specification forms, and labeling information.

o Phase IV: The applicant creates and submits Virginia Tech artwork. After artwork is
approved, final Virginia Tech samples need to be submitted. Once approved, the
applicant is fully licensed.

All contracts tor Virginia Tech are renewed on July 1 of each year regardless of the date a

L
WA
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UNIVERSITY RELATIONS 1CIES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL

licensee becomes licensed.

All designs must be approved by Licensing before manufacture or distribution. The licensing
agreement details all requirements for licensees and should be read carefully upon receipt.

A licensing application is available in pdf format. The complete application and $50 application
fee and samples of products to be licensed should be mailed to:

Virginia Tech Licensing
202C Media Building (0161)
Blacksburg, VA 24061

For additional information about Virginia Tech’s licensing program, contact licensing(@vt.edu or
540-231-3748.

Royalties from Licensed Products

The university receives royalty payments for use of any of Virginia Tech’s trademarks through
licensing agreements required of any company producing products bearing Virginia Tech
trademarks. All royalty payments received, less department administrative expenses, are
allocated by the Budget Office.

See Licensing & Trademarks (hitp:/fwww branding.unirel. vt.edu/licensing. php) for additional
information.

Publications

Marketing and Publications produces publications and other visual media critical to the
operation, goals, and mission of Virginia Tech. The unit’s publication services are directed at
public information, positioning, image-enhancement, fundraising, and recruitment efforts.
The unit provides writing, editing, copy-editing, art direction, graphic design, and marketing
support for projects generally at the university and college levels.

Among the visual media produced by the unit are:

Virginia Tech Magazine
Virginia Issues & Answers
VT NetLetter

Research Magazine

Corps Review

Science Magazine

Spheres

university annual report

® 2 o o » » b @
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24 1M COMPARY

1075 PEACHTREE STREET
SUITE 3300

ATLANTA GECGRGIA
30309

P 770 954 0520
F 770 958 44%1
whw.cle.com

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL sstephens@vadiner.com

April 28, 2016

Mr, Scott Stephens
Virginia Diner Inc.
322 West Main Street
Wakefield, VA 23888

Re: Virginia Tech
Dear Mr. Stephens:

It has been brought to our attention that Virginia Diner Inc. has produced and distributed merchandise
bearing the Licensed Indicia of Virginia Tech containing incotrect trademark designations. Our records
indicate the University licensing department notified your company in 2013 to change the incorrect
designation from ® to ™. Additionally, your company was notified in the fall of 2015 to correct the
designation. During the Spring Game at the University, merchandise was again found containing the
incorrect ® designation. Please refer to MyiCLC or your CLC coordinator for proper trademark
designations.

As you are aware, trademark designations serve as an important notice of trademark rights. Use of these
designations is critical in safeguarding the intellectual property rights of our member schools. Therefore,
it is imperative that all licensed merchandise bears the appropriate trademark designations. Please also
inform all appropriate staff of the correct trademark designations for future productions to avoid monetary
damages. .

To resolve this issue effectively:

1. Immediately cease production and distribution of all merchandise containing the incotrect
trademark designation;

2, Send all retail remaining merchandise to CLC for disposition;

3. Provide CLC with a written explanation of the steps your company intends to take to ensure

compliance with the design approval process;

4, Provide a detailed accounting for all remaining inventory and sales of this merchandise to
date, including profits earned. Damages may be assessed based on the information provided.

As of the date of this correspondence, due to your failure to respond to previous notifications and resclve
this matter in a timely manner pursuant to the tertns of your license agreement, your licensing agreement
with Virginia Tech is suspended pending a final decision by the University. Your company is not
permitted to produce and/or distribute merchandise containing the Licensed Indicia of Virginia Tech.

Appl Exmslr.l.i_
witngss B Nortis

DATE: S —DJ"(O
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HOGS.006448

BRAND PROTECTION BRAND MANAGEMENT BRAND DEVELOPMENT




Please be reminded that your company is required to resolve any breach of the license agreement within
fifteen (15) days of notification. As such, I will expect to receive the requested items no later than May
13, 2016. If you have any questions, please contact Sheldon Shorter sshorter@cle.com or 770-956-0520.

Sincerely,

LaTonya Washington
Associate Counsel

ce: Virginia Tech Licensing Department
Partner Services, CLC
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